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January 29, 2013
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of West Columbia:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of West
Columbia, South Carolina, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The report contains a comprehensive
analysis of the City’ s financia position and activities for the period.

State law requires that al general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of
each fiscal year a complete set of financia statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained
in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any materia
mi sstatements.

The City of West Columbia's financial statements were audited by Brittingham, Brown, Prince and
Hancock, CPASs, LLC, afirm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit
was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of West Columbia for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit,
that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of West Columbia's
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of
this report.

The City received and expended more than $500,000 in federal financial assistance and therefore was
required to have a single audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Information related to this single audit includes the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards, findings and recommendations. The auditor’s report on the
internal control structure and text of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants also isincluded in the governmental auditing standards section of this report.

200 N. 12 Street®P.O. Box 4044 eWest Columbia, South3Carolina 29171-4044(803) 791-18800FAX (803) 739-6231



The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical
and governmental auditing standards. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the
government’s organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the
general-purpose financial statements, the combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. The governmental auditing standards section includes the auditor’s
reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

This report includes all funds of the City of West Columbia. The City provides a full range of services,
which include police and fire protection; sanitation services; the maintenance of highways, streets and
infrastructure; recreational activities; planning and zoning, in addition to general government activities.
The City owns and operates a municipal water and sewer system serving residents and businesses within
its corporate limits and in the territory adjacent thereto. Therefore, this activity also is included in the
reporting entity.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of
West Columbia’s MD&A can be found immediately following the independent auditor’s report.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The City of West Columbia was incorporated in 1894 and is located in the eastern part of Lexington
County along the Saluda and Congaree Rivers. The City is located in the central part of the state, one of
the top growth areas of South Carolina. Economic conditions and outlook of the government are
progressively improving from the past three years. During this time, for example, regionally known retail
and wholesale firms located in the greater West Columbia area have started or expanded activities. This
growth has had a positive effect on employment and the government’s tax base.

The City of West Columbia currently occupies a land area of 8.8 square miles and serves a population of
14,998. The City of West Columbia is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal
properties located within its boundaries. The City also is empowered by state statute to extend its
corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when the City Council deems appropriate.

The City of West Columbia operates under a council form of government. Policy-making and legislative
authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the mayor and eight other members. The city
council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing
committees, hiring the city administrator and the city attorney, appointing the city treasurer and city clerk
and selecting the independent auditor to audit the city’s financial statements. The city administrator is
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the city council, for overseeing the day-to-day
operations of the government, and for appointing the heads of various departments. The council is elected
on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year staggered terms, with four council members
elected every two years. The mayor is elected to serve a four-year term. All eight council members are
elected by district. The mayor is elected at large.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of West Columbia
operates.



Local Economy — The City of West Columbia is located near the City of Columbia, the state capital of
South Carolina. The City is part of the greater Columbia Metropolitan area which has been experiencing
stable economic conditions. The City and its neighbors, the Cities of Cayce and Columbia, are
constructing a park along the banks of the Congaree, Saluda and Broad Rivers as part of the Three Rivers
Greenway Project, under the guidance of the coordinating agency, The River Alliance. The City of West
Columbia’s first phase of the project, known as the West Columbia Riverwalk Park and Amphitheater and
the City’s second phase of the park, designated the Riverwalk extension, have been completed. The
remaining portion of the City’s share of the Three Rivers Greenway project is in the planning and
development stage and should be completed within two to three years. When the entire Greenway project
is completed the park will have approximately twelve and a half miles of trails along the scenic Congaree,
Saluda and Broad Rivers.

Long-term Financial Planning — In January of 2008 the City began a major initiative to upgrade and
expand its aging wastewater infrastructure system and to modernize its Saluda River water treatment
plant. These projects were undertaken to prepare the City to meet the future needs of its citizens. The
water treatment plant, as well as, the affected sewer infrastructure are in excess of fifty years old. The
City financed the projects by obtaining two State Infrastructure Loans from the South Carolina State
Infrastructure Revolving Loan Program in the amount of $9,769,807 for the Saluda River water treatment
plant and $10,304,746 for the wastewater infrastructure upgrade. The terms of the loans are for 20 years
with rates of interest of 2.5%. The upgrade of the Saluda River water treatment plant was completed in
fiscal year 2011-2012. Completion of the wastewater infrastructure system project is anticipated in 2014.

The Congaree and Saluda Rivers always have played a dominant role of strategic importance in the City
of West Columbia’s development. The ongoing Three Rivers Greenway project includes plans for a
public nature park along both rivers that includes hiking trails, scenic overlooks on the river, concrete
pathways, picnic shelters and emergency call boxes (for park visitor safety). Development on both sides
of the Congaree River and Saluda Rivers is a driving force in the continuing economic development of the
City of West Columbia. The City is coordinating efforts to enhance the economic development of
property along the Congaree River that will be compatible to nearby residential areas.

Financial Information

Management of the government is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: 1) The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgeting Controls — In addition, the government maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated
budget approved by the government’s governing body. Activities of the general fund only are included in
the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures
cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function and activity within an
individual fund. The government also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of
accomplishing budgetary control.

The City Ordinances also provide for a non-appropriated budget for the proprietary fund to facilitate the
management review and approval process. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in
the financial section of this report, the government continues meeting its responsibility for sound financial
management.



Proprietary Operations — The government’s enterprise operation is comprised of the water/sewer
system. Several of the government’s major initiatives directly relate to the water and sewer activities. The
demand for housing in the City’s water service area is at an all time high resulting in the construction of
many new housing developments and as a result an increased demand on water services. Based on the
continuation of this trend, the water/sewer system should be in the position to generate revenues in an
amount sufficient to cover debt service and operating costs.

Cash Management Policies and Practices — Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in local
banking institutions and consisted mainly of time certificates of deposit, debt instruments of federal
agencies and securities held under the repurchase agreement. The maturities of the investments range
from 7 months to 24 months. The average yield on maturing investments during the year was 2.4 percent.
The government’s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a
competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository
insurance or collateralized. All collateral on deposits was held either by the government; its agent or a
financial institution’s trust department in the government’s name. It is the policy of the City of West
Columbia to hold investments to maturity.

Risk Management — The City maintains an employee health insurance plan for all full-time employees
through the South Carolina Employee Insurance Program (SCEIP), which is a state funded insurance
program administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of South Carolina. Workmen’s compensation insurance
is through a self-insurance funded program administered through a municipal pool. Specific excess
Workmen’s compensation insurance is provided through private insurance.

Other Information

Awards — The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of West
Columbia, South Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. This was the 21™ consecutive year that the City of West Columbia has received this
prestigious award. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in
state and local government financial reporting. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a
period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement Program requirements, and are submitting it to the GFOA.

Acknowledgments — The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff and financial department. Each member of the
department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in preparation of this report.

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Mayor and City Council, preparation of this report
would not have been possible. We gratefully acknowledge the role played by the governing body.

Sincerely,
. . ) i /

Richard K. Hodge, CPA Jennifer T. Cunningham
City Treasurer City Administrator
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

The Honorable Chairman and Members
Of The City of West Columbia Council
West Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of West
Columbia, South Carolina (hereafter referred to as the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the City. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
the aggregate remaining fund information, of the City as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial position and, cash flows thereof and respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report date January 29,
2013 on our consideration of City’s internal control over financial reporting and our test of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the
internal controls over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

James T. Brittingham, C.P.A. (1924-1995) - Kerry R. Brown, C.P.A - Kenneth E. Prince, C.P.A. - James T. Brittingham, Jr., C.P.A. - William H. Hancock, C.P.A./

Auditing - Tax - Estate & Trust Planning - Governmental - Business Consulting BusinessValuation - Litigation Support - Investment Advisory

www.BBPHCPA.com C PA
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- Page 2 -

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the City. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and schedules
and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Z/mﬁm/ﬁww Prinee t Mopeoeh

January 29, 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The City of West Columbia’ sdiscussion and anaysisoffersreaders of the City’ sfinancid statements
anarrative overview and analysis of the City’ sfinancial activitiesfor thefiscal year ended June 30,
2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, in thefinancial statements
and the notes to the financial statements.

The implementation of the new financial reporting requirements under Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GA SB) Statement # 34, Basic Financia Statementsand Management’ s Discussion
and Analysis for State and Local Governments, make the City’s 2012 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report significantly different than those reports prior to 2003. New featuresincludethis
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the
Government-wide Statement of Activities, the concept of major fund reporting, and the reporting of
infrastructure capital assets and long-term debt liabilities in the governmental activities. These
concepts are explained throughout this discussion and analysis.

Financial Highlights

e The City of West Columbia's assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2012 by
$33,528,639 (net assets).

e The City's total net assets increased $619,586 with $1,173,596 of the increase from
governmental activities and decrease $554,010 resulting from business-type activities.

e Forthefiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the City maintained only one governmental fund
which was its General Fund. The City’s governmental fund balance sheet reported a
combined ending fund balance of $4,082,994, an increase of $490,714 over the previous
fiscal year. Of thisamount, $3,986,176 is unrestricted.

e The Genera Fund reported actual revenues of $69,435 over budget and expenditures
under budgeted appropriations by $393,641.

e The City's total debt decreased by $3,016,783 for the current fiscal year. The main
reason for the decrease of the City'soverall outstanding long-term debt isthe servicing of
the debt through normal operations of the City (see Note 8).

Overview of the Financial Statements

Thisdiscussion and analysisisintended to serve as an introduction to the City of West Columbia's
basic financial statements. The basic financia statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

15



Government-wide financial statements — The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readerswith abroad overview of the City’ sfinancesin amanner similar to aprivate-sector business.

The statement of net assets presentsinformation on all of the City’ sassetsand liabilities, with thedifference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreasesin net assets may serve asauseful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City isimproving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presentsinformation showing how the City’ s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will result in cash flow in future fiscal periods (uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of West Columbiathat
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functionsthat areintended to recover all or asignificant portion of their coststhrough user feesand charges
(business-type activities). The City’ sgovernmental activitiesinclude general administration, police, fire, and
public works. The City’s business-type activities include awater and sewer utility system.

Fund financial statements — A fund isagrouping of related accountsthat is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of West Columbia, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functionsreported
asgovernmental activitiesin the government-widefinancial statements. However, unlike the government-
widefinancial statements, governmental fund financial statementsfocus on near-term inflowsand outflows
of spendable resources, aswell as on balances of spendabl e resources available at the end of thefiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’ s near-term financing requirements.

Because thefocus of governmental fundsisnarrower than that of the government-widefinancial statements,
itisuseful to comparetheinformation presented for governmental fundswith similar information presented
for governmental activitiesin the government-wide financia statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand thelong-term impact of the government’ s near-term financing decisions. Both thegovernmenta
funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

16



The City of West Columbia maintained only one governmental fund during the fiscal year 2011-2012.
Information is presented in the governmental funds bal ance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures and changesin fund balancesfor the General Fund whichisconsidered to beamgjor
fund.

The City of West Columbia adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General fund. Budgetary
comparison statements have been provided for this fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprietary funds — The City of West Columbiamaintains onetype of proprietary fund. Enterprisefunds
are used to report the same functions presented as busi ness-type activitiesin the government-wide financia
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer utility system.

Financial statements of proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, but in greater detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the City of West Columbia s water and sewer utility system, which is considered to be a
major fund of the City.

Fiduciary funds — The City acts as agent, or fiduciary, for other resources. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the City’'s
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities
from the City’ sgovernment-widefinancial statements because the City cannot use these assetsto financeits
operations.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes provide additional information that is essentia to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

The government-widefinancial statements are provided as part of the new approach mandated by the GASB,
which sets the uniform standards for presenting government financial reports. This report represents the
tenth year the City of West Columbiahas applied this standard and therefore these reports provide complete
comparative information as summarized in this Management’ s Discussion and Analysis. Asnoted earlier,
net assets may serve over time asauseful indicator of agovernment’ sfinancial position. Inthe caseof City
of West Columbia, assets exceeded liabilities by $33,528,639 at the close of themost recent fiscal year. The
City’sincrease in net assets for this fiscal year amounts to $619,586.

For the current year, the largest portion of the City’s net assets, 93.50 percent, reflects its investment in
capital assets (land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment); less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not availablefor future spending. Although the City’ sinvestmentin
capital assetsisreported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
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City of West Columbia’s Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Current and other assets ~ $ 4,997,882 $ 4576078 $15141667 $16984,810 $20,139549 $21,560,888
Capital assets, net 13,731,009 14167425 53015220 54598385  66,746229 68,765,810

Total assets 18,728,891 18,743,503 68,156,887 71,583,195 86,885,778 90,326,698

Long-term liabilities

outstanding 5,594,396 6,579,851 42243932 44,769,729 47838328 51,349,580
Other liahilities 1,752,017 1,954,770 3,766,794 4,113,295 5,518,811 6,068,065
Total liabilities 7,346,413 8534621 46010726 48883024 53357139 57417645
Net assets

Investing in capital assets,
net of related debt 7,429,902 6,771,907 23918424 23130592 31348326 29,902,499
Restricted 96,818 95,481 2,899,541 3,154,651 2,996,359 3,250,132
Unrestricted 3,855,758 3,341,494 (4671,804) (3585072 (816,046) (243578)
Total net assets 11382478 10208882 22146161  22,700171 33528639 32,909,053

A

additional portion of the City’s net assets (8.93 percent) represents resources that are restricted as to how
they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligationsto citizens, creditors, and customers within the respective governmental and business-
type activities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of West Columbiais able to report positive balances in both
categories of net assets as awhole and individually within the governmental and business-type activities.

The changes in net assets displayed below shows the governmental and business-type activities during the
fiscal year. The increase in entity-wide net assets is due to the general fund revenues exceeding budgeted
revenues and actual expenditures being under budget. Property tax revenuesand businesslicensefeeswere
primarily responsible for actual revenues exceeding budgeted revenues. Also, the return of the City’s pro
ratashare of excess health insurance premiums upon termination of the self-insured insurance pool, on June
30, 2011, of which the City wasamember contributed to increased funds. Thesefundswereusedingenera
operations and were significant in the increase in net assets. All general fund department’s actual
expenditures were under budget, however, the public safety and public works departments were the main
contributors to actual expenditures being significantly under budgeted expenditures.
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City of West Columbia's Change in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $4391,057 $4139686 $10,788398 $10971,120 $15179455 $15110,806
Operating grants & contributions 405,215 375,272 8470 12514 413,685 387,786
Capital grants & contributions 505,634 261,407 505,634 261,407
General revenues
Property taxes 3,947,495 3,591,516 3,947,495 3,591,516
I ntergovernmental 411,954 422,332 411,954 422,332
Investment earnings 224 2,385 229,801 297,704 230,025 300,089
Other 505,535 1,040,700 7,300 23,950 513,335 1,064,650
Total revenues 10,167,114 9833298 11034469 11305288 21201583  21,138586
Expenses
General Government 1,467,482 1423194 1,467,482 1423194
Community Development 246,140 260,905 246,140 260,905
Public Safety 7,468,321 7,479,607 7,468,321 7,479,607
Public Services 1,754,463 1,975,679 1,754,463 1975679
General Services 941,772 843,702 A1,772 843,702
Interest on Long-term Debt 247,238 285,970 247,238 285970
Water & Sewer Utility 8,456,581 8,355,960 8,456,581 8,355,960
Total expenses 12125416 12,269,057 8,456,581 8355960 20581997 20,625,017
Excess (deficiency)
before transfers (1,958302)  (2/435,759) 2,577,888 2,949,328 619,586 513,569
Transfers 3,131,898 3,277,098 (3131,898)  (3277,099) - -
Increase (decrease)
in net assets 1,17359% 841,339 (554,010) (327,770) 619,586 513,569

Financial Analysis of City of West Columbia Funds

As noted earlier, The City of West Columbia uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds — The focus of the City’s governmental fundsisto provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’ s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2012, the City of West Columbia governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$4,082,994, an increase of $ 490,714 over the prior year balances. Ninety-Eight (98) percent of this total
amount constitutes unrestricted fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’ s discretion. The
remainder of the fund balance, $96,818 is reserved, and is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to restricted purposes.
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Financial Analysis of City of West Columbia Funds (Continued)

The General Fund isthe primary operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2012, thetotal fund balancein the
general fund was $4,082,994. The general fund balanceincreased by $490,714 during the current fiscal year.
This increase is mainly a result of property tax revenues and business license fees exceeding budgeted
projections, along with areturn of excessinsurance premiums of $325,000. Also, actual expenditureswere
significantly under budget in the public safety and public works departments.

Proprietary funds — The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but with greater detail. At June 30, 2012, total net assets of the
Water and Sewer Utility System amounted to $22,146,161 as compared to $22,700,171 at June 30, 2011.
Thedecreasein net assets of $554,010 for thefiscal year isdue mainly to decreased water sales because of a
rainy summer and higher than projected repair cost at the City’s Lake Murray water treatment plant.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

A budget to actual statement isprovided for the General Fund. Columnsfor both the original budget adopted
for fiscal year 2012 as well as the final budget are presented. Quarterly budget amendments and
supplemental appropriations were approved during the 2011-2012 budget year. Total differences between
the original budget and the final amended budget were $182,766.

The General Fund budgeted revenues of $9,725,866 before other financing sources and achieved actual
revenues of $9,795,301 or $69,435 more than budgeted. Expenditures were budgeted for $13,182,766
before other uses with actual expenditures of $12,789,125. The City budgeted a deficiency of estimated
revenues over its appropriated expenditures before other financing sources and usestotaling $3,456,900, but
achieved a deficiency of revenue over expenditures before other financing sources and uses of $2,993,824.
The General Fund’ sbudget a so included budgeted net transfersin from the Enterprise Fund of $3,131,900.
The difference between budgeted and actual revenues resulted mainly from property tax revenues and
business license fees exceeding budgeted projections.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The City of West Columbiainvestmentsin capital assetsfor itsgovernmental and business
type activities as of June 30, 2012, amountsto $66,746,229 (net accumul ated depreciation). Thisinvestment
in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment. Major capital asset
eventsin the current year included the following (see Note 6):

o In order for the City of West Columbiato meet the needs of its citizensand continueto provide high
quality services, the City purchased a new 12 yard rear load garbage truck for $97,831 and added a
new pull-behind wood chipper at acost of $36,178. The City’ sfire department also purchased 19 new
800 series Motorolaradios at acost of $62,951. With the addition of these new radios, all of thefire
department’ sradios are now just not capable of communicating with all unitswithin the department as
in the past, but thisaddition allowsall of the department’ s unitsto communicatewith all of the City's
police department units as well as other neighboring fire and police agencies.

o Inthefiscal year 2008-2009 the City initiated two construction projectsto upgrade and modernizeits
water and sewer facilities. The projects include upgrading and automating the City’s Saluda River
water treatment plant and replacing aging sewer lines and rebuilding and upgrading numerous sewer
pump stationswithin the City’ s sewer system. Thewater treatment upgrade was completed during the
year and placed in service at atotal cost of $10,039,587. The other construction project, replacing and
upgrading the sewer system infrastructure and pump stations, was not compl ete as of June 30, 2012,
and therefore, remains as construction in progress with cost to date of $7,763,697 (see Note 16).
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

City of West Columbia’s Capital Assets (Net)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Land $5557,341 $5557341 $ 187500 $ 187500 $ 5744841 $ 5744841

Buildings & equipment 5,920,944 6,146,329 33544658 26247500 39465602 32,393,829
Improvements other than

buildings 10,080,783 10,122,021 10,080,783 10,122,021

Equipment 1,329413 159,745 1,329,413 159,745

Vehicles & equipment 2,252,724 2,463,755 109,169 78,335 2,361,893 2,542,090

Construction in progress 7,763,697 17,803,284 7,763,697 17,803,284

Total revenues 13731,000 14167425 53015220 54598385  66,746229 68765810

Long-term debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of West Columbia had total bonded debt
outstanding of $5,478,388 consisting of tax increment financing (TIF) bonds, series 2008, and a General
Obligation (GO) Bond, Series 2010. The TIF Bonds outstanding debt is secured by the incremental tax
revenue of the Tax Increment Finance District and by ajunior pledge of the water and sewer system. The
GO Bond outstanding debt is secured by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the City (see note 8).

The City aso had total revenue bonds outstanding in the amount of $ 29,096,796 at year end. The
outstanding balance of revenue bonds is secured by a pledge of the gross revenue of the Water and Sewer
Utility System aswell as alien against the system (see note 8).

The state limits the amount of general obligation debt the City of West Columbia can issueto 8 percent of
the assessed value of al taxable property within the City’ slegal debt limit. Based on the assessed value of
property the City could currently issue $4,497,186, as reflected in note 8 and table 13 of the statistical
section of thisreport.

City of West Columbia's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Captital leases $ 82719 $1177199 $ 52253 $ 82719 $ 1229452
Tax increment finance

bonds 3,154,571 3,619,241 3,154,571 3,619,241
General Obligation Bonds 2323817 2,569,619 2323817 2,569,619
Revenue bonds $29,096,79%6 30953781 29,096,796 30,953,781
Accrued compensated

absences 542,127 556,406 223,027 251,341 765,154 807,747

Total outstanding debt 6,843,234 7,922,465 20319823 31257375 36163057 39,179,840
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

The City’s total outstanding debt decreased by $3,016,783 during the current fiscal year. For additional
information concerning the City’s outstanding debt as of June 30, 2012, please see Notes 7 and 8 in the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e Theunemployment ratefor City of West Columbiais currently 7.4 percent, compared to the rate of
8.8 percent ayear ago. Thiscomparesfavorably with the state’ srate of 9.4 percent and the national
rate of 8.2 percent.

e Inflationary trendsin the region compare favorably to national indices.

Theseindicesweretaken into account when adopting the general budget for 2012-2013. Amountsavailable
for appropriation in the general fund budget are $13,722,000, an increase of 5.5 percent over thefinal 2012
budget of $13,182,766. It should be noted that the appropriated budget for 2013 includes $340,000 in
budgeted revenuesto service along-term general obligation bond the City issued in March of 2010to refund
short-term debt. A debt service millage of 6.6 mills was levied for the 2012-2013 fiscal year in order to
service the debt requirements. Property tax revenues for the coming year are projected to increase slightly
due to growth through annexations, new housing construction and improvement in property values for
existing housing as the economy begins to slowly improve. The City will monitor economic conditions
closely and make necessary budget adjustments as deemed appropriate.

Budgeted expenditures for 2013 are expected to increase over the actual 2012 expenditures due mainly to
increased revenues from grant related programs. The City does not anticipate entering into any major land
acquisitionsfor economic devel opment purposesinfiscal year 2012-2013 and has not budgeted i ssuing any
bonded debt instruments.

Asfor the City’ sbusiness-type activities, the City did not impose any rate increasesfor the water and sewer
utility system. The City continues to move forward on two major initiatives that the City has undertaken.
To upgrade and refurbish its aging Greenhill and Laurel Road water tank reservoirs. Engineering studies
have estimated the cost for upgrading and refurbishing the Greenhill water tank at approximately $160,000
and $325,000 for the Laurel Road water tank. Financing for the Greenhill water tank project isprovided by
a State grant in the amount of $160,888, of which $27,928 has been used to date, and the cost of the Laurel
Road water tank project will be paid for through budgeted revenues.

Requests for Information
Thisfinancial report isdesigned to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with ageneral overview of
the City’'s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have

guestions about thisreport or need additional financial information, contact Richard K. Hodge, CPA, City of
West Columbia Treasurer.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Receivables, net
Prepaid Charges
Internal Balances, net
Notes Receivable - Municipal Government
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Current Assets

Non -Current assets:
Notes Receivable - Municipal Government
Capital Assets, net
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Vehicles and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Deferred Charges, net
Total Non -Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable
Capital Leases
Accrued Compensated Absences
Customer Deposits
Deferred Revenue
(Payable from Restricted Assets)
TIF Bonds Payable
GO Bonds Payable
Contracts Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Accrued Interest Payable - Revenue Bonds
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term (Non-Current) Liabilities:
Capital Leases
Bonds Payable
Deferred Revenue
Accrued Compensated Absences
Other Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted to:
Debt Service
Capital Improvement Grant
Law Enforcement Grants & Programs
Accommodations Tax
Parks Program

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

JUNE 30, 2012

EXHIBIT |

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
1,222,684 $ 4,299,773 $ 5,522,457
1,020,752 1,801,434 2,822,186
5,635 5,635
2,632,479 (2,632,479) -
762,666 762,666
96,818 2,766,581 2,863,399
4,972,733 7,003,610 11,976,343
7,705,701 7,705,701
5,557,341 187,500 5,744,841
5,920,944 33,544,658 39,465,602
10,080,783 10,080,783
2,252,724 1,438,582 3,691,306
7,763,697 7,763,697
25,149 432,356 457,505
13,756,158 61,153,277 74,909,435
18,728,891 68,156,887 86,885,778
383,210 358,023 741,233
37,245 9,527 46,772
66,674 66,674
229,973 229,973
282,852 96,714 379,566
472,205 472,205
673,358 673,358
481,119 481,119
254,894 254,894
16,050 48,771 64,821
1,958,256 1,958,256
149,940 149,940
1,752,017 3,766,794 5,518,811
592,746 592,746
4,742,375 27,138,542 31,880,917
14,553,125 14,553,125
259,275 126,313 385,588
425,952 425,952
5,594,396 42,243,932 47,838,328
7,346,413 46,010,726 53,357,139
7,429,902 23,918,424 31,348,326
118 2,766,581 2,766,699
132,960 132,960
48,661 48,661
22,405 22,405
25,634 25,634
3,855,758 (4,671,804) (816,046)
11,382,478 22,146,161 33,528,639
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EXHIBIT 111
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

Total
General Governmental
Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 1222684 $ 1,222,684
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectables)

Property Taxes 203,779 203,779

State 88,386 88,386

Municipal Gover nments 261,630 261,630

Grants 317,962 317,962

Rehabilitation L oans 32,646 32,646

Other 116,349 116,349

Due From Other Funds 2,632,479 2,632,479
Restricted assets:

Cash 96,818 96,818
TOTAL ASSETS 4,972,733 4,972,733
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 383,210 383,210

Accrued Payroll, Taxes, & Vacation Pay 336,147 336,147

Deferred Revenue 170,382 170,382
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILTIES 889,739 889,739
FUND BALANCES

Restricted 96,818 96,818
Unassigned 3,986,176 3,986,176
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4,082,994 4,082,994
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES 4,972,733
Reconciliation to amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
Statement of Net Assets (See Note 20 ):
Capital assets used in gover nmental activities are not financial resour ces and
therefore are not reported in these funds. 13,731,009
Other assets not availableto pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
not reported in the funds. 25,149
Other liabilities not payable from currently available resour ces are not reported in these funds. (66,674)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payablein the
current period and therefore are not reported in these funds. (6,390,000)
Net Assets, end of year - Governmental Activities 11,382,478

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT IV

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Total
Governmental
REVENUES General Funds
Property Taxes $ 3,926,503 $ 3,926,503
Licenses and Permits 3,208,692 3,208,692
Fines and Forfeitures 452,259 452,259
Interest 224 224
Intergovernmental 411,954 411,954
Charges For Services 711,394 711,394
Grant Proceeds 910,849 910,849
Narcotics Program Income 18,712 18,712
Other Revenues 479,996 479,996
TOTAL REVENUES 10,120,583 10,120,583
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 1,328,992 1,328,992
Community & Economic Development 245,729 245,729
Public Safety 7,264,921 7,264,921
Public Services 1,730,813 1,730,813
General Services 891,228 891,228
Debt Service
Principal 1,062,958 1,062,958
Interest 264,484 264,484
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,789,125 12,789,125
EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES
(OVER)Y/UNDER REVENUES (2,668,542) (2,668,542)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Transfers In/(Out)
Water and Sewer Fund 3,131,898 3,131,898
Sale of Capital Assets 27,358 27,358
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3,159,256 3,159,256
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 490,714 490,714
FUND BALANCE - July 1 3,592,280 3,592,280
FUND BALANCE - June 30 4,082,994 4,082,994

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in these funds.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while repayment of the principal and interest consumes current financial

resources of governmental funds. This amount is the net effect of these

differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is reported.

However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial

resources. Thus, the change in net assets differ from the change in fund balance by
the cost of the capital assets sold.

490,714

(434,597)

20,992

35,348

1,062,958

(1,819)

Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities (See Note 20)

1,173,596

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT V
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Variance with

BUDGETED AMOUNTS Final Budget
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual (Negative)
Property Taxes $ 3,735900 $ 3,920,900 $ 3,926,503 $ 5,603
Licenses and Permits 3,180,000 3,230,000 3,208,692 (21,308)
Fines and Forfeits 341,000 341,000 452,259 111,259
Interest 3,000 3,000 224 (2,776)
Intergovernmental 377,600 397,600 411,954 14,354
Charges For Services 700,000 710,000 711,394 1,394
Grant Proceeds 931,400 914,966 910,849 (4,117)
Narcotics Program Income 21,100 21,100 18,712 (2,388)
Other Revenues 126,300 512,300 479,996 (32,304)
TOTAL REVENUES 9,416,300 10,050,866 10,120,583 69,717
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 1,534,300 1,400,153 1,328,992 71,161
Community & Economic Development 254,600 254,600 245,729 8,871
Public Safety 7,197,868 7,373,581 7,264,921 108,660
Public Services 2,036,600 1,911,600 1,730,813 180,787
General Services 796,200 914,200 891,228 22,972
Debt Service
Principal 975,000 1,064,100 1,062,958 1,142
Interest 205,432 264,532 264,484 48
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,000,000 13,182,766 12,789,125 393,641
EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER REVENUES (3,583,700) (3,131,900) (2,668,542) 463,358
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Transfers In/(Out)
Water and Sewer Fund 3,583,700 3,131,900 3,131,898 2
Sale of Capital Assets 27,358 27,358
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3,583,700 3,131,900 3,159,256 27,356
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 490,714 490,714
FUND BALANCE - July 1 3,592,280
FUND BALANCE - June 30 4,082,994

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Charges
Notes Receivable- Municipal Government
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Noncurrent Receivable - Municipal Government

DEFERRED CHARGES
Revenue Bond Issue Costs

TOTAL DEFERRED CHARGES

CAPITAL ASSETS
Water Plant, Lines, and Sewer System
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012
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EXHIBIT VI
Sheet1of 2

Business-Type
Activities

$ 4,299,773

1,801,434
5,635
762,666
2,766,581

9,636,089

7,705,701

432,356

432,356

70,934,039
(25,682,516)
7,763,697

53,015,220

61,153,277

70,789,366




CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Payable from Current Assets)

Accounts Payable

Customer Deposits

Accrued Payroll and Vacation Pay

Deferred Revenue

Dueto Other Funds

(Payable from Restricted Assets)

Contracts Payable

Revenue Bonds Payable

Accrued Interest Payable - Revenue Bonds

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued Vacation Pay - Due After One Year
Revenue Bonds - Due After One Year
Deferred Revenue - Due After One Year
Other Liabilities

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Engineering and Repair Grant
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT VI
Sheet 2 of 2

Business-Type
Activities

$ 358,023

472,205
106,241
673,358
2,632,479

48,771
1,958,256
149,940

6,399,273

126,313
27,138,542
14,553,125

425,952

42,243,932

48,643,205

23,018,424
132,960
2,766,581
(4,671,804)

22,146,161




EXHIBIT VI
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type

Activities
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Service $ 10,788,398
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 10,788,398
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services 2,819,165

Material and Supplies 573,708

Contractual Services 960,568

Utilities 919,767

Repairs and Maintenance 547,348

Depreciation 1,674,697

Other Operating Expenses 90,380
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,585,633
OPERATING INCOME 3,202,765
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest Revenue 229,801

Interest and Amortization Expense (870,948)

Grant Proceeds 8,470

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 7,800
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (624,877)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 2,577,888
TRANSFERS IN/(OUT)

General Fund (3,131,898)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (554,010)
TOTAL NET ASSETS -July 1 22,700,171
TOTAL NET ASSETS - June 30 22,146,161

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received From Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing
Activities
Transfers Out

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities

Principal Paid on Capital Debt

Interest Paid on Capital Debt

Aquisition of Capital Assets

Principal Paid on Capital Lease

Payments Received from Municipal Governments

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30
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EXHIBIT VI

Sheet 1 of 2

Business-Type
Activities

$ 10,706,565
(3,433,268)
(2,837,952)

4,435,345

(3,131,898)

(3,131,898)

(1,868,197)
(887,281)
(107,532)

(52,253)
755,935
7,800

(2,151,528)

229,801

229,801

(618,280)

7,684,634

7,066,354




CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Reconciliation of Operating Incometo
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income

Adjustmentsto Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
(Increase) Decreasein
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Charges
Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Customer Deposits
Accrued Expenses
Dueto Other Funds

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT VIII

Sheet 2 of 2

Business-Type
Activities

$ 3,202,765

1,674,697

452,134
(2,000)

(319,722)
(546,097)
12,130
(18,787)
(19,775)

1,232,580

4,435,345




EXHIBIT IX
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

Total
Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 49,569
TOTAL ASSETS 49,569
LIABILITIES
Due to Fireman's Organization 18,088
Agency Funds Held 31,481
TOTAL LIABILITIES 49,569

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The City of West Columbia was originally incorporated in 1894 as "Brookland." In 1938, the
name was changed to West Columbia.

The Home Rule Act (Section 47-26) of the 1962 Code of Laws, as amended, requires
municipalities to adopt a specific form of government. In 1975, the City adopted the Council
form of government.

The financial statements of the reporting entity include only the City of West Columbia. There
were no potential component units that merited inclusion because of the significance of their
operations or financia relationships with the municipality.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements:

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets, the Statement
of Activities and reports information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the government as a
whole. Separate columns are used to distinguish between the City’ s governmental and business-
type activities. Governmental activities are generally those activities financed by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. These activities are usually reported in governmental funds.
Business-type activities are those activities, which are financed in whole or in part by user fees
charged to external parties for goods and services. These activities are usually reported in
Enterprise Funds. The primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. At June 30, 2012,
there were no component units of the City.

The Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources of the City and reports the
difference between assets and liabilities as “net assets,” not fund balance or equity. The
Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues and reflects the “net (expenses) revenues’ of the City's
individual functions before applying “genera” revenues.

Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues
are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting government’s
taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole, and thus reduce the net cost of the function to be financed
from the government’s general revenues. They include (1) charges to customers who purchase,
use or directly benefit from goods and services provided by a given function, (2) operating grants
and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as genera revenues rather than as program revenues. All revenues are “generd”
revenues unless they are required to be reported as program revenues.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financia statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government-Wide financia
statements. The focus of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on “major”
funds. Mgjor individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported
as separate columns in the fund financia statements, with “non-major” funds being aggregated
and displayed in asingle column.

The City reports the General Fund as the “major” governmental fund and the Water and Sewer
Fund asthe “major” proprietary fund.

Because of the basis of accounting and reporting differences, summary reconciliations to the
Government-Wide financial statements are presented at the end of each applicable fund financial
Statement.

Governmental Funds

General Fund — The general fund is the genera operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for al financial resources except those required or earmarked to be accounted for in another
fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds — Proprietary funds are used to account for operations (1) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or
(2) where the governing body had decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes.

The Commission generally follows private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting
issued prior to December 1, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in accounting and reporting of transactions of its proprietary fund. The
Commission has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds — Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City
in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations and/or other
governmental units. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The fiduciary operations of the City consist of
agency funds as presented on exhibit 1X.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fiduciary Funds (continued)

The agency funds consist of the Fireman’s Fund and the Narcotics Fund as presented on
schedule D-1. The Fireman’s Fund is used to account for revenue received from the State Fire
Association’s Insurance Fund. The Narcotics Fund is used to account for cash seized in relation
to controlled substance seizures.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the City of West Columbia, South Carolina have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government
units. All applicable GASB Statements have been implemented including GASB Statement No.
34 Basic Financia Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments, which the City was required to implement effective fiscal year, ended June 30,
2003.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting is a conceptual description of the timing
of the accounting measurements made.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund financial statements use the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GASB Statement
Number 34. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor have been met.

As a genera rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the Government-
Wide financial statements. The inter-fund activity currently relates only to inter-fund
receivables, payables and transfers as described in note 14 to the financial statements. The City
currently has no internal service funds which provide services to other funds that would generate
internal payments for services. However, elimination of such chargesif they occur would distort
the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Governmental Fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrua basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrua (when they become
both measurable and available). "Measurable® means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers all revenues available if
they are collected within 60 days after year end.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued)

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. State shared revenues are recorded at the time
of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant
requirements have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash isreceived by the City.

Proprietary Fund financial statements reflect net assets and revenues, expenses and changes in
net assets using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrua basis concept, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized when incurred.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generaly result from providing goods and services in
connection with a proprietary fund’'s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the genera fund only. The City follows these
procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. Prior to June 30, the City Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. The budget is legally enacted by an ordinance passed by the Mayor and Council.

3. The City Administrator is authorized to administer the budget. Only the Mayor and
Council can amend the budget once it has been adopted.

4, The level at which expenditures may not legally exceed budget is established by function
and activity within an individual fund. Such appropriation transfers and amendments are
incorporated into the minutes of their meetings.

5. A formal budget is adopted and employed as a management control device during the
year for the genera fund. Effective budgetary control is also achieved through the
various grants, individua budgets as required by the grantors and terms of debt
covenants. The city ordinances aso provide for a non-appropriated budget for the
proprietary fund to facilitate the management review and approval process. This budget
is not presented for financial statement purposes, but is utilized by management.

6. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles,
which is the same basis whereby actual revenues and expenditures are recorded.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (continued)

7. The budget at the end of the year represents the budget adopted and amended by the
Mayor and Council. All operations and maintenance appropriations lapse at year-end.
However, capital outlay financial plans are adopted for all capital type projects.

8. During the year ended June 30, 2012, the City Mayor and Council approved the Generd
Fund budget as follows:
Supplemental

Fund Original Budget Appropriation Final Budget
General $ 13,000,000 $ 182,766 $ 13,182,766
9. Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or

services. Encumbrance accounting-under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation is utilized in the governmental funds.  Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year. At June 30, 2012 all commitments lapsed and no encumbrances were
recognized.

Cash and Investments

The City is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and agencies thereof,
general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political subdivisions, banks and
savings and loan associations to the extent they are secured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The City can hold cash in certificates of deposit where the certificates are
collaterally secured by the preceding securities held in athird party arrangement.

Cash includes amounts in demand, deposits, and cash on hand. Investments are stated at cost or
amortized cost, which approximates fair value, and consist mainly of certificates of deposit, debt
instruments of federal agencies and securities held under repurchase agreements.

Inter-fund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from
other funds" or "due to other funds" on the bal ance sheet.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants.

Deferred Charges

Governmental Activities: The deferred charges are made up of series 2008 tax increment revenue
bond issuance cost of $64,657 for insurance, brokerage and attorney fees. This amount is shown
net of $39,508 of amortization expense.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred Charges (continued)

Business-Type Activities. The deferred charges are made up of Series 1998A, 2005, 2009A, and
2009B Bond issue costs of $8,182, $266,966 $170,874, and $93,643 respectively for insurance,
brokerage and attorneys fees. These amounts are shown net of $107,310 of amortization
expense.

Capital Assets

Governmental funds: Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures on the governmental fund
financial statements and as assets on the government-wide financial statements. All capital
assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost
where no historical records exist. All assets with an initial cost of $1,000 or greater and a useful
life of three years or more are capitalized and reported on the government—wide financial
statements. The City has no material general infrastructure assets.

Proprietary Fund Types: Capital outlays of the proprietary funds are recorded as capital assets on
both the fund basis and the government-wide basis. The costs of hormal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. The
property, plant, and equipment as shown on the proprietary fund balance sheet represent the
historical cost in the aggregate of additions to the water treatment system, water and sewer lines
and related expenditures over time as well as vehicles and equipment.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets used by the primary government is charged as an
expense against operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives for
all assets using the straight-line method. A summary of the estimated useful livesisasfollows:

Buildings and Improvements 10 to 40 years
System Infrastructure 40 to 50 years
Vehicles and Equipment 3t0 10 years
Office Equipment 5to0 7 years
Computer Equipment 3to5years

Bond Discounts/Issuance Costs

In governmental fund types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current
period. Bond discounts and issuance costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized
over the term of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bond discounts are presented as a
reduction of the face amount of bonds payable whereas issuance costs are recorded as deferred
charges.

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to allow employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave benefits
up to certain hours. Accumulated unused vacation, to a maximum of five days for the first year,
two weeks for less than eleven years, three weeks for eleven to twenty years, and four weeks for
over twenty years, is payable upon termination if the employee leaves the City in good standing.
In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards No. 16,
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Compensated Absences (continued)

Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulation
rightsto receive sick pay benefits.

In the Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund financial statements, vacation pay is accrued
when incurred and reported as a current and long-term liability. In the Governmental Funds,
vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is
reported as an expenditure and a fund liability. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as aresult of employee retirement.

Long Term Debt

In the Government-Wide financia statements and the Proprietary Fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type
Statement of Net Assets. Long term debt represents unmatured principal of genera obligation
and revenue bond indebtedness, and outstanding portions due on long-term contracts. Liabilities
arising from inter-fund activities do not constitute general long-term liabilities.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

In the Government-Wide financia statements, the difference between the City’s total assets and
total liabilities represents net assets. Net assets for both the governmental and proprietary fund
types displays three components; 1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted,;
and 3) unrestricted. Unrestricted net assets represent the net assets available for future
operations.

In the fund level financial statements, the difference between the City’s total assets and total
liabilities represents fund balance. The City reports fund balance in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,” for the
fund level financia statements. The objective of this Statement is to enhance the usefulness of
fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more
consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. Fund
balance for the fund level financial statements can display five components. nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These components focus on the extent to which
the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the fund can
be spent. These five components are defined as:

Nonspendable Fund Balance

The nonspendable fund balance component includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The
“not in spendable form” criterion includes items that will never be converted to cash, for
example, inventories of supplies and prepaid items. It may also include the long-term portion of
loans and notes receivable, as well as nonfinancial assets held for resale.
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Note 1.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Net Assets and Fund Balances (continued)

Restricted Fund Balance

The restricted fund balance component includes amounts that are either restricted externally by
creditors, grantor, contributors, or laws or regulation of other governments or restricted by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance

The committed fund balance component includes amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by City Council in the form of alegal ordinance. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or
changes the specified use by passing a legal ordinance. Committed fund balances aso
incorporate contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The City recognizes
committed fund balances that have been approved for specific purposes by City Council before
the fiscal year end.

Assigned Fund Balance

The assigned fund balance component includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent
to be used for specific purposes but are not restricted or committed. The authority for making,
modifying, or removing an assignment is not required to be the City’s highest level of decision-
making authority. Assigned amounts can be authorized for specific purposes by a designated
Official, adesignated Body, or the City Council.

Unassigned Fund Balance

The unassigned fund balance component includes amounts that have not been assigned to other
funds and has not been restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes within the general
fund.

Based on the City’s policies regarding fund balance components as noted above, the City
considers amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to be spent when the corresponding
expenditure that has been designated with formal action by the City Council, Official, or Body
has been made. After these fund balances have been depleted, unassigned fund balance will be
considered to have been spent.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in selected sections of the
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's
financial position and operations. However, comparative data has not been presented in all
statements since such inclusion would make certain statements unduly complex and more
difficult to understand.
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Note 1.

Note 2.

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are used to determine
depreciation expense and the allowance for doubtful accounts among other accounts. Actua
results could differ from those estimates.

Deposits and Investments

Deposits

As of June 30, 2012, the City of West Columbia held no long-term investments. However, the
City has held investments in prior years and anticipates investing available funds in subsequent
years.

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair value
by limiting the weighted average maturity of itsinvestment portfolio to short periods of time.

Credit Risk

State statute (SC Code Section 12-45-220) outlines acceptable investment vehicles and limits the
level of risk that may be accepted by a government entity. State statute and the City’'s
investment portfolio limits the City’s investments to obligations of the United States and
agencies thereof; general obligations of the State of South Carolina or any of its political units;
interest bearing accounts in savings and loan associations to the extent that the same are insured
by an agency of the Federa government; certificates of deposit where the certificates are
collaterally secured by securities of the type described above, held by a third party as escrow
agent or custodian, of a fair value not less than the amount of the certificates of deposit so
secured, including interest, provided, however, such collateral shall not be required to the extent
the same are insured by an agency of the United States Government; or deposit accounts with
banking institutions insured and secured in the same manner.

State statutes also allow the State Treasurer to assist local governments in investing funds
through the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), of which the fair value
of the City’s investments are the same as the value of the pooled shares. The State Treasurer’s
investment pool is not rated, but generally, investments are collateralized by debt securities in
corporate obligations, state or political subdivision obligations of investment grade or higher
quality and in federal agency securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy requires available surplus funds to be invested in long-term
certificates of deposits, of which no one institution is to hold 100 percent of the certificates, or
the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, in which case credit risk is limited via alocation of
investments over a broad range of securities.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Note 2. Deposits and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits

In the case of deposits, thisistherisk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may
not be returned to it. It is the policy of the City to obtain adequate collateralization on all
deposits that exceed FDIC insurance coverage. As of June 30, 2012, the City had cash on-hand
of $1,850 and cash deposits in demand, savings, money market and certificate of deposit
accounts equal to $8,650,730. Of the deposit amounts, $522,118 is covered by FDIC insurance,
and the balance of $8,128,612 is collateralized by federa agency securities held by the various
banks to secure the deposits of the City.

Custodial Credit Risk-Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter party, the
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are
in possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2012, all investments in agency securities, as
noted above, are book entry and held by third partiesin the City’ s name.

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Water and Sewer Fund considers cash and all
highly liquid investments, restricted and unrestricted, with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Note 4. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied on real and personal properties owned on the preceding December 31
of each City fiscal year ending June 30. Liens attach to the property at the time the taxes are
levied. These taxes are due without penalty through January 15. Penalties are added to taxes
depending on the date paid as follows.

January 16 through February 1 - 3% of tax
February 2 through March 16 - 10% of tax
March 17 and thereafter - 15% of tax plus collection cost

Current year real and personal taxes go into execution on March 17. The levy date for motor
vehicle taxes is the first day of the month in which the motor vehicle license expires. These
taxes are due by the last day of the same month. Property tax revenues are recognized when due
or past due and collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (defined as sixty
days) to pay liabilities of the current period. An alowance is provided for an estimated amount
of taxes billed, which may ultimately prove to be uncollectable. Deferred revenue (property
taxes) for governmental funds represents that portion of delinquent property taxes, which is
deemed not available to pay current expenditures.

Property taxes are assessed and collected by Lexington County under a joint billing and
collection agreement.

For Government-Wide financial statements, property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year
for which they are levied. For Government Fund financia statements, City property tax
revenues are recognized for the budget period to which they apply when they become
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Property Taxes (continued)

measurable and available. Delinquent and unpaid property taxes are reported as receivables, less
amounts estimated to be uncollectable.

Notes Receivable — Proprietary Fund

This consists of amounts due from the Town of Lexington and the Joint Municipal Water and
Sewer Commission pursuant to contracts that provide necessary improvementsto the City’s Lake
Murray Water Treatment Facility that guarantee capacity of 4.5 million GPD to the Town and
increase the Commission’s guaranteed capacity from 4.5 million GPD to 10.07 million GPD.
The Town’s contract also provides for instalation of water lines for newly acquired customer
service areas. The Town is obligated to pay its share of the 1998A bond issue requirements
(40.09%) for installation of water lines and also its share of the 2009C bond issue requirements
(69.33%) for the water treatment facility upgrade. The Commission is obligated to pay its share
of the 2005 bond issue requirements (53.72%) associated with an additional 9 million GPD
upgrade to the Lake Murray Water Treatment facility completed in May 2007. The City has
begun to amortize the deferred revenues from these sales of capacity over the remaining life of
the plant.

Changes in Capital Assets

Governmental Activities:

A summary of changesin governmental activities capital assetsis asfollows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets:

Land $ 5,557,341 $5,557,341

Total Non-Depreciable

Capital Assets: 5,657,341 5,657,341
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Buildings and Improvements 8,037,981 8,037,981

Vehicles and Equipment 7,810,233 $ 689,171 $ 243,989 8,255,415

Total Depreciable

Capital Assets 15,848,214 689,171 243,989 16,293,396
Total Capital Assets: 21,405,555 689,171 243,989 21,850,737

Less accumulated
Depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements 1,891,652 226,770 2,118,422

Vehicles and Equipment 5,346,478 896,998 242,170 6,001,306
Total Accumulated

Depreciation 7,238,130 1,123,768 242,170 8,119,728

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net: 14 167,425 (434,597) (1,819) 13,731,009
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Note 6. Changes in Capital Assets (continued)

Business-Type Activities:

A summary of changes in business-type capital assetsis asfollows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2012

Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets:

Land $ 187,500 $ 187,500
Construction in Progress 17,803,284 $ 10,039,587 7,763,697
Total Non-Depreciable
Capital Assets 17,990,784 10,039,587 7,951,197
Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings 35,840,630 $ 8,285,587 44,126,217
Improvements Other
Than Buildings 23,196,536 476,000 23,672,536
Equipment 830,966 1,281,055 2,112,021
Vehicles and Equipment 778,697 88477 3 31,410 835,764
Total Depreciable
Capital Assets: 60,646,829 10,131,119 31,410 70,746,538
Total Capital Assets: 78,637,613 10,131,119 10,070,997 78,697,735

Less accumulated
Depreciation for:

Buildings 9,593,130 988,429 10,581,559
Improvements Other

Than Buildings 13,074,515 517,238 13,591,753
Equipment 671,221 111,387 782,608
Vehicles and Equipment 700,362 57,643 31,410 726,595
Total Depreciable
Capital Assets: 24,039,228 1,674,697 31,410 25,682,515

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net: 54,598,385 8,456,422 10,039,587 53,015,220

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 177,138
Community and economic devel opment 453
Public safety 654,404
Public services 185,782
General services 105,991
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities 1,123,768

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer utility $1,674,697
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities 1,674,697
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Capital Leases

The City is obligated under certain non-cancelable leases accounted for as capital leases and are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements and
related obligations recorded in the Enterprise Fund are accounted for within that fund. Assets
under capital leases totaled approximately $ 308,696 at June 30, 2012 and are reported under the
vehicle and equipment asset class. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease
payments under capital leases, together with the net value of the minimum lease payments as of
June 30, 2012.

Year Ending Governmental-type

June 30 Activities

2013 $ 260,071

2014 260,071

2015 177,475

2016-2017 202,388

Minimum lease payments for all capital leases 900,005
Less. Amount representing interest at the

City'sincremental borrowing rate of interest 77,286

Present value of minimum |ease payments 822,719

Changes in Bonds, Loans and Other Long Term Debt

The following is a summary of bond, loan and other long term debt transactions.
Governmental activity obligations are repaid from the genera fund and business-type
obligations from the Proprietary fund for the debts as detailed below.

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

Long Term Debt:

Capital Leases $1,177199 $ $ 354,510 $ 822,689

Tax Increment Bonds

Series 2008 3,619,241 464,670 3,154,571

General Obligation Bond

Series 2010 2,569,619 245,802 2,323,817

Total Payable 7,366,059 1,064,982 6,301,077
Compensated Absences 556,406 49,139 63,418 542,127

Long-term debt for Governmental Activitiesis comprised of the following:

June 30, 2012
Interest Rate Current Portion Long Term Portion

Capital Leases 2.77103.97% $ 229,973 $ 592,746
Tax Increment Bonds, Series2008  3.54% 481,119 2,673,452
Genera Obligation Bond, Series 2010 3.699% 254,894 2,068,923

Compensated Absences 282,852 259,275
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Changes in Bonds, Loans and Other Long Term Debt (continued)

On March 26, 2010 the City issued a long-term General Obligation Bond, Series 2010, in the
amount of $2,813,623 to refund two short term General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009A and
2990B, issued on March 25, 2009, in the amounts of $1,490,000 and $1,170,000 respectively
plus accrued interest. The Series 2010 Bond is payable as to principal and interest in equally
amortized payments of $340,852, payable each March 1, beginning March 1, 2011 through
March 1, 2019, with the final payment of $340,852 being paid on February 25, 2020 the maturity
date of the Bond. The Bond shall bear interest at the rate of 3.699 percent per annum.

The City issued $5,565,000 of tax increment financing bonds, series 2003, to provide funds for
the construction of a new 32,000 square foot city hall. The bonds are secured by the incrementa
tax revenue from the Tax Increment Financing District and a junior lien of the water and sewer
revenues. The City refunded the series 2003 bonds on March 10, 2008. The series 2008 bonds
have a stated rate of interest of 3.54 percent and are payable over the next 6 years.

The annual requirements for bonds payable for Governmental Activities are asfollows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal Amount Interest Amount
2013 $ 736,013 $ 197,630
2014 762,474 171,169
2015 789,885 143,758
2016 818,283 115,360
2017-2018 2,371,733 177,259
Totals 5,478,388 805,176

Business-Type Activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

Long Term Debt:

Capital Leases $ 52,253 $ 52,253 $ 0
Revenue Bonds — 1998A 973,810 106,556 867,254
Revenue Bonds — 2005 9,756,610 559,283 9,197,327
Revenue Bonds — 2009A 9,495,215 380,967 9,114,248
Revenue Bonds 2009B 7,887,279 401,391 7,485,888
Revenue Bonds 2009C 2,930,565 420,000 2,510,565
Less: Deferred Issue Cost 89,698 11,212 78,486
Total Payable 31,006,034 1,931,662 29,096,796

Compensated Absences: 251,341 20,681 48,995 223,027
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Changes in Bond, Loan and Other Long Term Debt (continued)

Long-term debt for Business-type activities is comprised of the following:

Revenue Bonds:
Series 1998A Issue
Series 2005 Issue
Series 2009A Issue
Series 2009B Issue
Series 2009C Issue
Total Revenue Bonds

Compensated Absences:

4.75%
2.50%
3.00%
3.50%
3.53%

Interest Rate

June 30, 2012

Current Portion

Long Term Portion

$ 111,709
577,467
408,689
431,603
428,788

1,958,256

96,714

$ 755,545
8,619,860
8,705,559
7,054,285
2,003,291

27,138,540

126,313

Under the terms of the bond and loan covenants the City is required to maintain certain reserves

and restricted assets. There are also a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the

various bond indentures. The City is in compliance with all material and significant limitations
and restrictions. Based on the constitutional debt limit as set by the State of South Caroling, the
City could issue such up to eight percent (8%) of the assessed valuations of property on which
property taxes are levied, or approximately $4,497,186 at June 30, 2012 (Table 13).

The annual requirements for bonds payable for the Enterprise Fund are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
Totals

Revenue Bonds

Principal
Amount
1,958,257
2,011,393
1,889,389
1,938,971
1,999,605
2,056,319
2,071,414
1,658,870
1,696,510
1,735,005
1,774,373
1,814,635
1,855,809
1,703,029
1,025,607

572,212
585,196
598,474
151,728

29,096,796

50

Interest

Amount
738,126
684,481
632,446
582,093
530,152
476,501
421,017
375,562
337,921
299,427
260,058
219,796
178,621
136,512
93,138
38,116
25,132
11,854
853
_6.041,806
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Net Assets

Net assets of the Government — Wide and Proprietary Fund financia statements represent the
difference between assets and liabilities. Reported amounts invested in capita assets and
restricted net assets were as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt:
Net capital assets $ 13,731,009 $ 53,015,220
Less net bonds payable 5,478,388 29,096,796
Less capital |eases 822,719 :
Total invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7,429,902 23,918,424
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Restricted:
Debt service $ 118 $ 2,766,581
Capital Improvement Grant 132,960
Law Enforcement Grants and Programs 48,661
Parks Program 22,405
Accommodations Tax 25,634 :
Total restricted net assets 96,818 2,899,541

Employee Retirement Systems

The City of West Columbia contributes to the South Carolina State Retirement System (SCRS)
and Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit plan. The City’s payroll for the year ended June 30, 2012, for employees covered by
SCRS was $5,630,713 and by PORS was $2,392,669. The City’s total payroll for all employees
was $8,023,382.

As established by Title 9-1-480 Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976 (as amended), all eligible
persons, except those specifically excluded shall become members of the retirement system as a
condition of their employment. The responsibility of the administration of the system is assigned
by law to the State Budget & Control Board. Generally, employees who are responsible for the
preservation of the public order are members of the PORS; the remaining City employees are
members of SCRS.

Both the SCRS and the PORS offer retirement and disability benefits, cost of living adjustments
on an ad hoc basis, life insurance benefits and survivor benefits. The Plan’s provisions are
established under Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws.

The following is arecap of the mandated contribution rates:

SCRS PORS
Employee Contributions 6.500% of Salary 6.500% of Salary
Employer Contributions 9.385% of Salary 11.363% of Salary
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Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

In addition to the preceding rates, the City contributes .15 percent of the SCRS payroll to provide
a group life insurance benefit for their SCRS participants. Also for their PORS participants the
City contributes .2 percent of PORS payroll to provide a group life insurance benefit and .2
percent of PORS payroll to provide an accidental death benefit.

The City’s contributions to the SCRS for the years ending June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were
$536,859, $535,486, and $501,629 respectively. The City's contributions to the PORS for the
years ending June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $281,450, $269,709, and $248,170,
respectively.

The City contributes at the actuarially required contribution rates.

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report containing financial statements and required
supplementary information for the SCRS and PORS is issued and publicly available by writing
the South Carolina Retirement System, P.O. Box 11960, Columbia, S.C. 29211-1960.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a state-sponsored deferred compensation plan (created in
accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 457) available through the South Carolina
State Treasurer’s Office.

The plan, available to al City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. In effect, the employee temporarily loses access to the resources in exchange for
the right to defer federal taxes. The deferred compensation cannot be withdrawn by employees
until termination, retirement, death, disability or an approved hardship.

In 1996, Congress passed new legislation governing IRC Section 457 plans. The new legislation
specifically states that all assets and income of the plan must be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. All existing plans had to be modified to comply
with the new legidation by January 1, 1999. The plan, which is available through the State of
South Carolina, was modified to comply with the new legislation July 1, 1998.

GASB — Statement 32 eliminates all of the financial accounting and reporting related to IRC
Section 457 plans. Therefore, the assets in the plan are no longer reported in the Agency Fund in
these statements.

Risk Management

Prior to July 1, 2011, The City of West Columbia was a member of the South Carolina Local
Government Assurance Group (SCLGAG) which was a self-funded health benefits program. On
July 1, 2011, the city changed coverage to the South Carolina Employee Insurance Program
(SCEIP), which is a state funded insurance benefit program administrated by Blue Cross / Blue
Shield of South Carolina. This program is available to employees of the state, higher education
ingtitutions, public school districts and participating local subdivisions. The General Assembly
passed legislation extending voluntary participation in the state’'s Employee Insurance Program
to eligible local subdivisions. To be eligible to participate the local subdivisions must fall within
one of the categories, which include municipalities, established by statute (Section 1-11-720 of
the S.C. Code of Laws, as amended). The Employee Insurance Program of SC offers health,
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Risk Management (continued)

dental, vision, life, and long term disability. The City pays employee health (standard rate), basic
dental, required life and required long term disability. Additiona options are available that
employees may purchase. The City is also a member of the South Carolina Municipal Insurance
Trust, which is a self-funded workers compensation program. In this program, the City is part of
a pool of local governments for the determination of rates. Each member of the SCMIT accepts
responsibility for normal claims expense with no additional liabilities.

Other Liabilities

The amount shown as other liabilities represents funds contributed to the City’s 2005 Revenue
Bonds payable debt service reserve fund by the Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission
based upon contractual obligations as stated in note 5 to the financial statements. As aresult of
the City’s insurance underwriter for the Revenue Bond Series 2005 being downgraded in 2008,
the City was required under its master bond ordinance to establish a reserve fund in the amount
of $779,590, of which the Commission is responsible for 53.72 percent. As of June 30, 2012 the
City and Commission had contributed $779,590 to the Revenue Bond Series 2005 debt service
reserve fund.

Inter-fund Receivables, Payables And Transfers

Individual fund inter-fund receivable and/or payable balances (shown as "Due to or Due from
Other Funds") as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Inter-fund Receivables Inter-fund Payables
General Fund $2,632,479
Proprietary Fund: Water and Sewer $2,632,479
Totals 2,632,479 2,632,479

The inter-fund balances reflect amounts due from one fund to the other for obligations of a fund
that have been paid or otherwise satisfied by the other fund.

Inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Transfer In
Transfer Out Genera Fund
Proprietary Fund: Water and Sewer $ 3,131,898

The transfer of $3,131,898 to the General Fund from the Proprietary Fund is based on budgetary
authorizations. The principa purpose of the transfers between fundsis to support the genera
operations of the government.

Commitments

Lake Murray Water Treatment Plant — The City of West Columbia has agreements with the Joint
Municipa Water and Sewer Commission and the Town of Lexington relating to a water
treatment plant at Lake Murray. Thisisnot ajoint venture. The role of the Commission and the
Town is predominantly as one of the major users of the system. The contracts provide for fifty-
three and three quarter percent (53.72%) of the water produced to be made available to the
Commission and twenty-four percent (24%) to the Town at a bulk rate, which in turn would be
sold to their customers. The Commission and the Town would only have an operational interest
in the project and not an equitable interest.
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Construction Commitments

The City has an active construction project as of June 30, 2012. The project consists of replacing
aging sewer lines and rebuilding and modernizing numerous sewer pump stations within the
City’s sewer system infrastructure (clean water project). The City has spent to date $7,990,054
on the clean water project. The remaining commitment on the construction project is $48,771.

The commitment for this project is being funded by State of South Carolina' s State Infrastructure
Revolving Loan Program through issuance of Revenue Bonds.

Contingencies

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principaly the federa government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time athough
the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Compliance - Net Earnings Covenant - Series 1998A, 1998B, 1999A 2002 and 2005 Bonds

The City covenants and agrees that it will, at times, prescribe and maintain and thereafter collect
rates and charges for the services and facilities furnished by the System which, together with
other income, are reasonably expected to yield annua net earnings in the current fiscal year
equal to at least one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the total annual principal and interest
requirements for all series of bonds outstanding in such fiscal year. However, the document for
the Series 2005 Bonds provides a test that, when applied, could be more restrictive. The City is
in compliance with this covenant.

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Plan Description

The City’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan (the Plan), which the City initiated
July 1, 2008, provides medical and dental insurance to eligible retirees under the Medicare age of
65. Employees become dligible when the employee qualifies for retirement benefits under the
SCRS or PORS and has 15 years of continuous service with the City and was employed with the
City as of June 30, 2008 as a fulltime employee. Anyone hired by the City on July 1, 2008 or
later is not eligible to participate in the Plan. Information regarding SCRS and PORS €ligibility
may be obtained from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Plan. See note 10.
The Plan is approved each year by City Council; the contribution requirements of the City and
plan members are established and amended by Council. These contributions are neither
guaranteed nor mandatory. Council has retained the right to unilaterally modify its payments
toward retiree health care benefits.

As of July 1, 2011, the measurement date for the plan year 2012, there were 221 covered
participants; 10 members are retirees receiving benefits and 211 are active participants.
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Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)

Plan Description (continued)

The Plan is affiliated with the South Carolina Other Retirement Benefits Employer Trust (SC
ORBET), an agent multiple-employer irrevocable trust administered by the Municipal
Association of South Carolina. Each participating employer is responsible for determining the
appropriate amount of contributions to remit to the Trust. SC ORBET issues a publicly available
financial report that includes audited financia statements and required supplementary
information for the Plan. A copy of the report may be obtained by writing to: Chief Financial
Officer for Risk Management Services, Municipal Association of SC, P. O. Box 12109,
Columbia, South Carolina29211.

Funding Policy

The City makes a monthly contribution for retiree-only healthcare coverage for currently eligible
employees based on actuarially calculated cost. The monthly contribution that the city
contributed for fiscal year 2011-2012 was $14,555. For current retirees the City makes a
percentage of the healthcare contributions based on years of service. For 15 years of continuous
service the City pays 75 percent of the retiree's healthcare and dental premium. For 16 to 19
years of service the percentage increases by 5 percent a year and for an employee who retires
with 20 or more years of continuous service the City pays 100 percent. The City pays the
premiums until the employee reaches age 65 or becomes Medicare eligible. For the fiscal year
2011-2012, the City contributed $100,406 for retiree heathcare coverage and the retirees
contributed the balance based on the number of years of service.

The City’s annual other postemployment benefits (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The current ARC rate is based on an actuarial vauation that is prepared in accordance
within certain parameters. The current rate is 3.58 percent of annual covered payroll.

Annual OPEB Cost and Funded Status and Funding Progress

For the fiscal year 2011-2012 the City’s annual OPEB cost was $ 275,065 for the Plan, which
was equal to the ARC. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB
cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

Normal Cost $ 116,807
30 Y ear amortization of unfunded accrued liability (UAL) 153,658
Plan expenses 4,600
Total Annual Required Contribution 275,065

Contributions included $ 174,659 paid by the City to the Plan to pre-fund benefits and $ 100,406
made by the City through payment of covered participants explicit and implicit subsidized
benefits.
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Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Funded Status and Funding Progress (continued)

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 in fiscal year 2008-2009. The City’s annual
OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB
(obligation) asset for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, were as follows:

Percentage of Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Annua Annua OPEB (Obligation)
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Asset .
6-30-2012 $ 275,065 100% $0

At June 30, 2012, the actuaria accrued liability for benefits (AAL) was $3,071,045, with
$1,013,200 in Plan assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$2,057,845. The funded ratio (Actuaria value of Plan assets/AAL) was 33.0 percent. The
covered payroll (annua payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $7,674,986, and
the ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll was 26.9 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear
trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the Plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the
Plan as understood by the employer and Plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actual value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations. The City uses the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method. The actuarial
assumptions included a 6.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an
initial annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10.5%. The trend rate will decrease until it reaches
5% after seven years. Both rates included a 3% inflation assumption. The dental cost trend rate
was assumed to be 6.0% per annum. The asset valuation method used is 5-Year Smoothed
Market Value. The ORBET trust’s actuarial consultants intend to use a smoothing method over
a5 year period with the assumed investment rate of return. The Plan’s UAAL is being amortized
on the level dollar method on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30,
2012, was 27 years.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Note 20. Reconciliation of Government — Wide Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanations of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Governmental - Wide Statement of Net Assets

The Governmental Fund Balance Sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance amounts
and Net Assets-Governmenta Activities. The details of the reconciled amounts are as follows:

Capital assetsin governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements:

Capital assets $ 21,850,737
Less, accumulated depreciation (8,119,728)
Net amount reported 13,731,009

Other assets not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Deferred charges, net of amortization $ 25,149

Net amount reported 25,149

Accrued interest on bonds and capital leases in governmental
funds is not due and payable in the current period and

therefore is not reported as aliability in the funds. $ (66,674)
Net amount reported (66,674)

Liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
fund financial statements:

Deferred Revenue $ 170,382
Bonds and Capital |eases payable (6,301,107)
Compensated absences (259,275)
Net amount reported (6,390,000)
B. Explanations of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue,

Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

The Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance and Changes in Net Assets-
Governmental Activities. The details of the reconciled amounts are as follows:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures;
however, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets
are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. Thisisthe amount by which
depreciation exceeds capital outlay in the current period.

Capital outlay expenditures $ 689,171
Depreciation expense (1,123,768)

Net amount reported (434,597)
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Note 20. Reconciliation of Government — Wide Fund Financial Statements (continued)
B. Explanations of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenue,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
(continued)

Revenuesin the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are reported as revenues in these funds:

Property taxes $ (21,649
Net amount reported (21,649)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:

Amortization — Bond issue cost $ (4,310
Change in Accrued compensated absences (13,323)
Change in Accrued interest expense 20,524
Net amount reported (2,891)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while repayment of principal and interest
consumes current financial resources of governmental funds.
This amount is the net effect of these differencesin the treatment
of long-term debt and related items:

Capital lease Proceeds $ (105,000)
Principal payments— Bonds 689,787
Principal payments — Capital Leases 295,225
Net amount reported 880,012

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital
assetsis reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds
from the sale increase financia resources. Thus, the change in net
assets differs from the change in fund balance by the costs of the
capital assets sold. $ 1,819

Note 21. Subsequent Events

The City has evaluated all events subsequent to the basic financia statements for the year ended
June 30, 2012 through January 29, 2013, which is the date the financia statements were
available to be issued, and determined that there are no additional subsequent events requiring

note disclosure.
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Required Supplementary | nformation

City of West Columbia Employees Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedule of Funding Progr ess

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Actuarial UAAL asa
Valuation Value Accrued Accrued Liability  Funded Covered Per centage of
Date of Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
6-30-09 $ 379,940 $ 3,868,995 $ 3,489,055 9.8%  $7,744,378 45.1%
6-30-10 695,681 3,868,995 3,173,314 18.0% 6,810,014 46.6%
6-30-11 975,879 3,763,069 2,787,190 26.0% 5,711,025 48.8%

6-30-12 1,013,200 3,071,045 2,057,845 33.0% 7,674,986 26.9%
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GENERAL FUND
The general fund is used to account for resourcesthat are traditionally associated with the

City which arenot required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
another fund.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles)
Property Taxes - Delinquent
State
Municipal Governments
Grants
Rehabilitation Loans
Other
Prepaid
Due From Other Funds
Water and Sewer Fund
Restricted Assets
Cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Payroll Withholding
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Vacation Pay
Deferred Revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
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SCHEDULE A-1

June 30, June 30,
2012 2011

$1,222,684 950,932
203,779 176,237
88,386 90,486
261,630 188,398
317,962 120,129
32,646 32,646
116,349 120,194
119,862
2,632,479 2,652,254
96,818 95,481
4,972,733 4,546,619
383,210 517,960
16,050 11,400
37,245 870
282,852 274,719
170,382 149,390
889,739 954,339
119,862
96,818 95,481
3,986,176 3,376,937
4,082,994 3,592,280
4,972,733 4,546,619




CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE A-2

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest
Intergovernmental
Charges For Services
Grant Proceeds
Narcotics Program Income
Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General Government
Community and Economic Development
Public Safety
Public Services
General Services

Debt Service
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES
OVER/(UNDER) REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In/(Out)
Water and Sewer Fund
Recapture of Professional Fees
Capital Leases
Sale of Capital Assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCE - July 1

FUND BALANCE - June 30
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June 30, June 30,
2012 2011

$ 3,926,503 $ 3,613,165
3,208,692 3,132,209
452,259 343,474
224 2,385
411,954 422,332
711,394 656,140
910,849 636,679
18,712 7,863
479,996 160,670
10,120,583 8,974,917
1,328,992 1,235,857
245,729 255,414
7,264,921 7,575,576
1,730,813 2,118,363
891,228 769,804
1,062,958 985,012
264,484 306,494
12,789,125 13,246,520
(2,668,542) (4,271,603)
3,131,898 3,277,098
800,000
105,000
27,358 80,030
3,159,256 4,262,128
490,714 (9,475)
3,592,280 3,601,755
4,082,994 3,592,280
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

LEGISLATIVE (MAYOR & COUNCIL)

Personnel Services
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

TOTALS

ADMINISTRATIVE
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest

TOTALS

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

INSPECTIONS
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Supplies and Charges
Capital Outlay

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH BUDGET

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2011)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Personnel Services

Supplies

Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

Debt Service - Interest

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY
POLICE DEPARTMENT
ADMINISTRATION

TOTALS

Personnel Services

Supplies

Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest

SCHEDULE A-4

SHEET 10F 3
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 2011 Actual

$ 139,900 $ 131,820 $ 8,080 $ 144,423
48,650 54,476 (5,826) 65,581

1,000 1,000
189,550 186,296 3,254 210,004
463,700 438,747 24,953 490,103
22,300 22,949 (649) 21,842
323,000 317,241 5,759 314,878
401,603 363,759 37,844 199,030
710,529 710,472 57 677,443
223,171 223,171 - 256,200
2,144,303 2,076,339 67,964 1,959,496
2,333,853 2,262,635 71,218 2,169,500
127,300 122,012 5,288 127,315

2,000 948 1,052
11,700 10,184 1,516 10,358

1,000 2,202 (1,202)
142,000 135,346 6,654 137,673
99,100 98,539 561 101,123
300 61 239 166
13,200 11,783 1,417 16,452
112,600 110,383 2,217 117,741
254,600 245,729 8,871 255,414
2,806,400 2,812,813 (6,413) 2,847,878
47,528 32,903 14,625 48,391
676,800 659,749 17,051 594,637
354,185 374,834 (20,649) 525,451
3,884,913 3,880,299 4,614 4,016,357
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PUBLIC SAFETY (CONTINUED)
DETECTIVES
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

TOTALS

DISPATCH - 911 CALL CENTER
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

TOTALS

COURT ADMINISTRATION
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

TOTALS

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

CROSSING GUARDS
Personnel Services
Other Services and Charges

TOTALS

FIRE DEPARTMENT
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest

TOTALS

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH BUDGET

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2011)

SCHEDULE A-4

SHEET 2 OF 3

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 2011 Actual

$ 1,060,350 979,197 $ 81,153 $ 1,040,874
25,600 35,487 (9,887) 26,027
153,700 143,580 10,120 121,238
16,700 12,057 4,643 78,610
1,256,350 1,170,321 86,029 1,266,749
257,700 249,701 7,999 248,405
8,400 2,078 6,322 2,995
8,300 7,328 972 7,211
2,400 2,400 1,036
276,800 259,107 17,693 259,647
185,700 181,071 4,629 189,735
1,000 4,719 (3,719) 4,963
52,000 52,464 (464) 51,359
238,700 238,254 446 246,057
5,656,763 5,547,981 108,782 5,788,810
617 (617) 1,560
- 617 (617) 1,560
1,444,400 1,453,983 (9,583) 1,496,726
22,100 18,908 3,192 24,974
159,418 153,246 6,172 142,243
90,900 90,186 714 121,263
180,791 180,791 - 141,468
33,641 33,641 - 36,007
1,931,250 1,930,755 495 1,962,681
7,588,013 7,479,353 108,660 7,753,051
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SCHEDULE A-4

SHEET 3 OF 3
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED WITH BUDGET
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2011)
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 2011 Actual
PUBLIC SERVICES
STREET DEPARTMENT
Personnel Services $ 264,200 $ 199,589 $ 64,611 $ 266,079
Supplies 9,000 8,452 548 10,170
Other Services and Charges 283,800 295,818 (12,018) 279,149
Capital Outlay 49,200 22,515 26,685 129,330
Debt Service - Principal 11,780 11,719 61 11,340
Debt Service - Interest 1,220 1,214 6 1,593
TOTALS 619,200 539,307 79,893 697,661
SANITATION DEPARTMENT
Personnel Services 906,600 879,977 26,623 1,056,211
Supplies 36,000 19,327 16,673 49,112
Other Services and Charges 207,300 171,126 36,174 138,803
Capital Outlay 155,500 134,009 21,491 189,509
Debt Service - Principal 161,000 159,976 1,024 154,760
Debt Service - Interest 6,500 6,458 42 12,695
TOTALS 1,472,900 1,370,873 102,027 1,601,090
TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICES 2,092,100 1,910,180 181,920 2,298,751
DIVISION OF GENERAL SERVICES
MAINTENANCE SHOP
Personnel Services 420,400 466,895 (46,495) 411,078
Supplies 11,000 6,610 4,390 5,987
Other Services and Charges 70,200 54,403 15,797 56,917
Capital Outlay 64,000 28,329 35,671 6,408
TOTALS 565,600 556,237 9,363 480,390
PARKS AND RECREATION
Personnel Services 228,000 219,288 8,712 125,124
Supplies 36,500 32,625 3,875 12,625
Other Service and Charges 52,100 51,117 983 124,407
Capital Outlay 32,000 31,961 39 27,258
TOTALS 348,600 334,991 13,609 289,414
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES 914,200 891,228 22,972 769,804
GRAND TOTAL 13,182,766 12,789,125 393,641 13,246,520
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private businessenter prises—wheretheintent of the gover nment’scouncil
isthat the costs of providing foods or servicesto the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user chargesor wherethegovernment’scouncil has
decided that periodic deter mination of net incomeisappropriatefor accountability pur poses.

Water and Sewer Fund —to providefor an accounting of water and sewer servicesand related
charges to residents of the City of West Columbia and parts of Lexington County. All
necessary activitiesin providing such servicesareaccounted for in thisfund, including but not
limited to, administration, oper ations, maintenance, construction, financing and related debt
service, billing and collection.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER

AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Charges
Notes Receivable- Municipal Government
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Noncurrent Receivable - Municipal Government

DEFERRED CHARGES
Revenue Bond Issue Costs

TOTAL DEFERRED CHARGES

CAPITAL ASSETS
Water Plant, Lines, and Sewer System
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

SCHEDULE B-1

SHEET10OF 2
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
$ 4,299,773 $ 4,671,413
1,801,434 2,253,568
5,635 3,635
762,666 738,094
2,766,581 3,013,221
9,636,089 10,679,931
7,705,701 8,495,373
432,356 461,760
432,356 461,760
70,934,039 60,834,329
(25,682,516) (24,039,228)
7,763,697 17,803,284
53,015,220 54,598,385
61,153,277 63,555,518
70,789,366 74,235,449
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SCHEDULE B-1

SHEET 2 OF 2
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Payable from Current Assets)
Accounts Payable $ 358,023 $ 677,745
Customer Deposits 472,205 460,075
Accrued Payroll and Vacation Pay 106,241 132,040
Capital Lease Obligation 52,253
Deferred Revenue 673,358 683,625
Due to Other Funds 2,632,479 2,652,254
(Payable from Restricted Assets)
Contracts Payable 48,771 48,771
Revenue Bonds Payable 1,958,256 1,851,898
Accrued Interest Payable - Revenue Bonds 149,940 206,888
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,399,273 6,765,549
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued Vacation Pay - Due After One Year 126,313 119,301
Revenue Bonds - Due After One Year 27,138,542 29,101,883
Deferred Revenue - Due After One Year 14,553,125 15,122,593
Other Liabilities 425,952 425,952
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 42,243,932 44,769,729
TOTAL LIABILITIES 48,643,205 51,535,278
NET ASSETS
Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 23,918,424 23,130,592
Capital Improvement Grant 132,960 141,430
Restricted for Debt Service 2,766,581 3,013,221
Unrestricted (4,671,804) (3,585,072)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 22,146,161 22,700,171
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SCHEDULE B-2

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

June 30, June 30,
2012 2011

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 10,788,398 $ 10,971,120
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 10,788,398 10,971,120
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services 2,819,165 3,036,216

Material and Supplies 573,708 599,500

Contractual Services 960,568 833,222

Utilities 919,767 967,619

Repairs and Maintenance 547,348 363,050

Depreciation 1,674,697 1,401,025

Other Operating Expenses 90,380 88,239
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,585,633 7,288,871
OPERATING INCOME 3,202,765 3,682,249
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest Revenue 229,801 297,704

Interest and Amortization Expense (870,948) (1,067,089)

Grant Proceeds 8,470 12,514

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 7,800 23,950
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (624,877) (732,921)
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 2,577,888 2,949,328
TRANSFERS IN/(OUT)

General Fund (3,131,898) (3,277,098)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (554,010) (327,770)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - July 1 22,700,171 23,027,941

TOTAL NET ASSETS - June 30 22,146,161 22,700,171
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTSOF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received From Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Cash Paid to Employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
TransfersOut

Net Cash Used in Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Proceeds From Capital Debt
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Capital Lease
Payments Received from Municipal Gover nments
Proceedsfrom Sale of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest in Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net I ncrease (Decrease) in Cash and
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents- July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30

SCHEDULE B-3

SHEET 10F 2

June 30, June 30,

2012 2011

$ 10,706,565 $ 11,402,361
(3,433,268) (3,248,808)
(2,837,952) (3,108,318)
4,435,345 5,045,235
(3,131,898) (3,277,098)
(3,131,898) (3,277,098)
1,860,159
(1,868,197) (1,599,901)
(887,281) (888,089)
(107,532) (1,904,515)
(52,253) (50,246)
755,935 931,378
7,800 23,950
(2,151,528) (1,627,264)
229,801 307,094
229,801 307,094
(618,280) 447,967
7,684,634 7,236,667
7,066,354 7,684,634

73



SCHEDULE B-3

SHEET 2 OF 2
CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND - WATER AND SEWER
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
June 30, June 30,
2012 2011
Operating Income $ 3,202,765 $ 3,682,249
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation 1,674,697 1,401,025
(Increase) Decrease in
Accounts Receivable 452,134 961,550
Prepaid Charges (2,000) (167)
Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable (319,722) (885,341)
Deferred Revenue (546,097) (542,245)
Customer Deposits 12,130 11,936
Accrued Expenses (18,787) (72,102)
Due to Other Funds (19,775) 488,332
Total Adjustments 1,232,580 1,362,988
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 4,435,345 5,045,237
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for
individuals, private or ganizations, other governments and/or funds.

Fireman’'s Fund — to account for revenue received from another governmental agency on

behalf of the employees of the City’sfire department and to record the expenditures of such
funds.

Nar cotics Fund —to account for cash seized in relation to controlled substance seizuresand the
record of remittance of such moniesto another local law enforcement agency.
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SCHEDULE C-1

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

FIREMAN'S FUND

ASSETS- CASH $ 10,184 $ 29109 $ 21,205 $ 18,088
LIABILITIES
Due to Fireman's Organization 10,184 29,109 21,205 18,088

NARCOTIC SEIZURE

ASSETS- CASH 41,299 23,018 32,836 31,481
LIABILITIES
Agency Funds Held 41,299 23,018 32,836 31,481

TOTAL - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS- CASH 51,483 52,127 54,041 49,569
LIABILITIES
Due to Fireman's Organization 10,184 29,109 21,205 18,088
Agency Funds Held 41,299 23,018 32,836 31,481

51,483 52,127 54,041 49,569
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CAPITAL ASSETSUSED IN THE OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE D-1

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE

JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles and Equipment

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
BY SOURCE
General Fund

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
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June 30, June 30,
2012 2011

$ 5,557,341 $ 5,557,341
8,037,981 8,037,981
8,255,415 7,810,233
21,850,737 21,405,555
21,850,737 21,405,555
21,850,737 21,405,555




CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE D-2

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITIES

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Fire
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

PUBLIC SERVICES
Street
Sanitation
TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICES

GENERAL SERVICES
General Services
Maintenance Shop
Parks and Recreation
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Land,
Buildings
and Vehicles and
Fixtures Equipment Total
$ 6,902,185 $ 438,175 $ 7,340,360
3,764,695 2,536 3,767,231
3,770,105 3,770,105
590,941 2,020,580 2,611,521
590,941 5,790,685 6,381,626
739,274 739,274
76,418 885,835 962,253
76,418 1,625,109 1,701,527
87,329 87,329
87,183 193,830 281,013
2,086,571 205,080 2,291,651
2,261,083 398,910 2,659,993
13,595,322 8,255,415 21,850,737
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE D-3

CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Fire
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY

PUBLIC SERVICES
Street
Sanitation
TOTAL PUBLIC SERVICES

GENERAL SERVICES
General Services
Maintenance Shop
Parks and Recreation

TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Capital
Assets Assets
June 30, June 30,
2011 Additions Deletions 2012
$ 7,329,995 $ 10,365 $ 7,340,360
3,765,029 2,202 3,767,231
3,516,027 369,946 $ 115,868 3,770,105
2,646,245 90,186 124,910 2,611,521
5,796,692 460,132 240,778 6,381,626

717,084 22,190 739,274
828,244 134,009 962,253
1,634,862 156,199 - 1,701,527
87,329 87,329
255,895 28,328 3,210 281,013
2,259,707 31,944 2,291,651
2,576,667 60,272 3,210 2,659,993
21,405,555 689,170 243,988 21,850,737
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VICTIM'SRIGHTS ASSISTANCE
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This section of the City of West Columbia’s comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about
the City of West Columbia’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 86

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader under-
stand how the government’s financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 92

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
government’s most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 96

These schedules present information to help the reader to assess the
affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt
and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 101

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the government’s
financial activities take place.

Operating Information 103

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
Understand how the information in the government’s financial report
relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.
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Table 3

City of West Columbia, South Carolina
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Motor Alcoholic
Fiscal Property Accommodations Vehicle Carrier Beverage
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Total
2003 $ 1,345,898 $ 3,421 $ 288,530 $ 4,003 $ 34,371 $ 1,676,223
2004 1,488,446 9,982 328,276 4,172 21,459 1,852,335
2005 1,521,744 21,980 307,274 4,213 24,250 1,879,461
2006 1,779,577 9,807 293,830 5,037 17,900 2,106,151
2007 1,900,921 5,050 327,369 5,962 12,900 2,252,202
2008 2,036,046 7,170 337,133 6,464 11,100 2,397,913
2009 2,190,738 29,409 332,445 6,615 18,650 2,577,857
2010 2,257,940 26,754 274,679 5,751 17,900 2,583,024
2011 2,676,687 52,412 279,456 4,862 16,400 3,029,817

2012 2,725,644 60,906 334,199 4,756 6,900 3,132,405
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City of West Columbia, South Carolina

Principal Property Taxpayers

June 30, 2012

Table 8

2012 2003
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
S.C. Electric & Gas Co. $1,500,230 1 1933% $ 1,247,870 1 20.49%
Campus Investors HSRE-SC 1,169,960 2 15.08% 0.00%
Columbia Farms, Inc. 934,970 3 12.05% 522,540 5 8.58%
Wal-Mart Stores 716,810 4 9.24% 859,550 3 14.11%
Westside Meshekoff Family LP 569,360 5 7.34% 418,550 7 6.87%
Bell South Telecommunications 449,980 6 5.80% 501,220 6 8.23%
Sun, Inc 512,820 7 6.61% 0.00%
Captial Hospitalty LLC 445,620 8 5.74% 0.00%
Granby Oaks Association 365,020 9 4.70% 318,610 8 5.23%
TimeWarner/Advanced Newhouse 346,750 10 4.47% 1,071,240 2 17.59%
Baker and Baker 318,680 11 4.11% 0.00%
Chevy Chase Limited Partnership 240,350 14 3.10% 229,110 9 3.76%
West Columbia Apartments 190,320 19 2.45% 205,140 10 3.37%
Klinelron & Steel 717,280 4 11.78%

Totals $ 7,760,870 6,091,110
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City of West Columbia, South Carolina

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Percentage of

Table 11

Estimated
General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per

Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property Capita
2004 $ 2,200,000 2,200,000 041% $ 168
2005 2,660,000 2,660,000 0.49% 204
2006 2,660,000 2,660,000 0.40% 204
2007 2,660,000 2,660,000 0.32% 204
2008 2,660,000 2,660,000 0.31% 204
2009 2,660,000 2,660,000 0.30% 204
2010 2,813,623 2,813,623 0.31% 215
2011 2,569,619 2,569,619 0.26% 171
2012 2,323,817 2,323,817 0.23% 155

Note: Prior to 2004 there was no general bonded debt outstanding
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City of West Columbia, South Carolina

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2012

Table 12

Estimated

Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt

Lexington County $ 37,959,352 566% $ 2,148,499
School District No. 2 32,904,000 18.58% 6,113,563
Lexington County Recreation District 21,105,000 8.21% 1,732,721
Riverbanks Park District 3,710,611 2.30% 85,344
Subtotal, overlapping debt 10,080,127
City of West Columbia, South Carolina direct debt 2,323,817
Total direct and overlapping debt 12,403,944

Sources: City of West Columbia Treasurer, Lexington County Treasurer, Auditor, and Finance

officers of above-mentioned entities

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the
City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne
by the residents and businesses of the City of West Columbia, SC. This process recognizes that, when
considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the
residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer isa
resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

98



69E'ELTC

‘uibew 1gep [efie] 8yl ag PINOM YdIYM ‘ZTOZ ‘0E dune

Te 98T'/6v't/$ Aprewixoidde Jo fero.dde ss10A INoyLm A11D 8y Ul pe1edo|

Audoud Jo anfen passasse ay) Jo (948) usd4ad 1ybBie 01 fenbs 1gep uoirebijgo eleush

anss| pinod A)D 8y ®euljofed Yinos Jo SIS aY) Ag Jes se 1| 1gep [euonisuod

U3 Uo paseq "000'000%$ PSOX3 01 10U spuog Uo 1B [eJeUSD anss| 0} 3|0e S|

A0 a1 ‘0T0C ‘6T Afenuer parep aoueuiplo Ue Aq pazLoyine S "0TOZ ‘9z UoelA uo
spuog uo1ef1|dO [eRRUdD Ul €29'€T8'2$ PanssieiquinioD 1S9/ JO AHD 8y L'T B10N

€T 3lqel

uiBrew 10ep e
1T8'€2EC 11W1| 013 |ceatdde 1gep 18U 101
1gep uoirebi|do [eseusl
JaWAeda. J0} apise 18S JUNOW Y SS9
LT8'€CEC spuoq uoiefI|go feseusn
‘Jwi| 0} 3|qedl|dde 1geQ
98T'L6V'Y (%8) Hwi|1geQ
/28'%12'95 9N[eA passasse [e10 |
097'659'T Auadoud jeas 1dwiexs oeq ppy
/9€'q66S $ anfe/\ pessessy
TT0Z JedA [e3SI4 Jo4 uolre|nafed uibaen 1gsq [ebe
%/.9'1S %6219 %07 69 %9T°29 %889 %.LSTL %09E'GL %6188 %06'TL %000
69€'€LT'C 8vT'c29'T 119'0v2'T 2/1'00E'T €/T'502'T 008'950°T T2.'698 982'95¢ TE9'658 226'78'C
118'eze'e 6T9'695°C €29'c18'C 000°099°2 000099 000°099°2 000099 000°099°2 000°002‘2
98T'/6V'Y $ /9.26TY $ 00EVSOV$S <2/L'096°'€$ €LT°G98'€$ 0089TL'€$ TcL'625'€$ 982'9T0'E$ TE9'6S0°€$  26'vP8CH
Z10¢ T70C 0T0C 600¢ 800¢ 100¢ 900¢ S00¢ ¥00¢ €00¢
Iea A |eosl

SIeaA [20SIq Ual 15|

UonewIoju| ulbIe 1gaQ [eba

2UI018) YINos eiquinjo) 15a/\ Jo A1)

1w 1g8p 8y} Jo abiejuaoled e se
11| ays 03 8ot |dde 1gep U [e10 L

uibrew 1gep b
w1 03 3|ceal(dde Joep BU 10 L

Hwiiged

99



v1olgqeL

'SJUBWIIESS [eIoURULY B 0] SB10U 3y} Ul punoy} aq ued 1gep Bulpueisino s,juswiuienob syl Bulprebels|erq T

910N

100

LT 28e'28L ' G8T 88 /6T'898'T 299°2/8'Y 9€6'0T6'S 865'€8.'0T Z10¢
G0°¢ 888'€8Y7'¢ 686 €88 668'66S'T ¥/2'€80'G o9¥8°/88'G 0CT'T.6°0T T10C
T¢e e6T'eSh'T 686 '8EY Y0Z'vT0'T 888'/99'% €48'eY6'S Tv/'T09'0T 0T0C
79T €90°/¥8'¢C 60£'0ES ¥G.'9TEC T2EV6S'Y TYT'02€9 29v'vT6'0T 6002
88T /£8'6€8'¢C T9EYT9 9/¥'Gee' /E6'9EE'S GEG'89.'G Z.V'SOT'TT 800¢
€91 eve'698'¢C £69°/89 099'TLTC 6,209V €00'009 282'00L°0T 100¢
€6'T 8T6'05¢2'¢C 60T vTS 608'9EL'T 88T'oveE'y ZSCOTT'S OvY'29r'6 900¢
70°C T2.750°C oGT'e8Yy GOG'T/S'T 6.2'88T'Y Gv.'TI9'Y ¥20'008'8 S00¢C
GS'T 2/2'150°¢ 6£2'82S €e0'eeS'T €68'78T'E 29T'GGL'Y GS0'0v6'L 700¢
174N 6EG'TLGT ¥/8'7S8 G99'6T. ¢ T2EVIEE $ TL2CVEY $ 26590L°L $ €00¢
abeuano)d [e1o1 1Sa491U] [edioulid anuanay sasuadx3g 13Yy10 pue ETN
STEVIRENERNESECE a|ge|leAy Buneaado sabueyd [easi4
19N 1S9 19M3S/191e M\

Spuog snusaAdy JaMaS pue Ualepn

SIEa A [edSIq Ua] 1se ]

abelan0)) anUsAayd-pabpald

BUI0IED) JIN0S "eIquInjoD) 158/ JO AlTD



SOISIIeIS JogeT Jo nesing 'S 'N
U1 pUe SIUSLULLIBAOD) JO [1DUN0D SPURIPIA [RAUSD S30.N0s el

%0t L G/0'€ 0h4" v'.E 2elL've 99G'08.'0.E 866 T Z10¢
%0T°0T 090°€ 0T 9Ty Tev've 8T0'9TE'29¢E 866 T TT10C
%06°L G90'E 0h4" 198774 G8/.°C¢ 009'TZS'eTE ¥90°cT 0T0C
%088 0S0°€ 0T (08774 €85°0¢ /8/'G8G'G/¢ 790°cT 6002
%0Lt Gv0'E 0h4" ocr 00¢'TC 008'956'9.¢ 790°cT 800¢
%01 G20'e 0T v'iv 0SP'Te 008'2¢2'082 790°cT 100¢
%01 Ge0'e 0h4" v'iv L0V'TC 8v0'T99'6.¢ ¥790°cT 900¢
%05 G66'C 0T Ty GaP'0c 02T'v2e’'L92 790°cT S00¢C
%0T'E G86'¢C 0h4" L'8E GET'8T 095°20g'.€C ¥90°cT 700¢
%02 166C 0T L'8E GET8T $ 095°20€.€2 $ ¥790'€T €00¢
aley 1w ([0 Ju3 Buljooyss aby awIodU | awodU | uolre|ndod Jeo A
JuewAodweun [ooYoS [ew JoH ueIpa N [eucs od [eucs od [easiH

Josres A elded

ul pne] Rod
uolyeonp3

STeo X B51d oL Be |
SO1IS1e1S oIou0o g pue olyde ooueq
BU1j01e) yINoS elquinio) oM 10 A11D

GIaldel

101



City of West Columbia, South Carolina
Principal Employers
Current Year and Six Years Ago

Table 16

2012 2006
Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Wal-Mart Stores 537 1 26.76% 515 1 22.67%
House of Raeford Farms 353 2 17.59% 425 2 18.71%
Lexington School District 2 247 3 12.31% 264 3 11.62%
South Carolina Episcopal Home 229 4 11.41% 200 4 8.80%
City of West Columbia 196 5 9.77% 176 6 7.75%
Heartland of Lexington 125 6 6.23% 153 7 6.73%
Belcher Staffing Services 92 7 4.58% 187 5 8.23%
U S Postal Service 90 8 4.48% 100 10 4.40%
Bi-LoLLC 72 9 3.59% 105 9 4.62%
H T Hackney Company 66 10 3.29% 147 8 6.47%
Total 2,007 73.2% 2,272 77.3%

Information available for current year and six years ago only.
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SCHEDULE F-1

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass Through Grantor CFDA Grantors Total
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
US Department of Housing and Urban Development
Brookland-Lakeview Empowerment Center 14.251 $ 7,265
Passed Through Lexington County Department of
Community Development
CDBG Lexington County - Tri-City Facade 14.218 13,988 *
ARRA - CDBG Lexington County - West Columbia Demo 14.218 19,600 *
US Department of Justice
Bullet Proof Vest Grant 16.607 3,982
COPS - Universal Hiring Program Grant 16.710 2008UMWX 0014 2,907 *
ARRA - COPS - Hiring Program Grant 16.710 2009RKWX0768 156,776 *
Justice Assistance Grant 2011 16.738 2011DJBX 2399 6,976
Passed Through SC Department of Public Safety
Project Safe Neighborhood 16.609 1P11001 4,744
White Collar Crime Investigation Grant 16.738 1G11003 47,432
In-Car Digital Video Systems 16.738 1G08029 19,993
Traffic Enforcement Program 20.600 2H12020 164,863
US Department of Health and Human Services
LRADAC Coalition Grant 93.276 5H79SP017093 123,842
US Department of Transportation
Passed Through the SC Department of Transportation
Triangle City Streetscape 20.205 32.272B 134,680
Total Federal Assistance Expended 707,048

* Major Programs
Note A-- Basis of Presentation

This schedule includes the federal grant activity of the city and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule, is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations . Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGSAND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION 1-SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’SRESULTS

Financial Statements

1. Typeof Auditors report issued.

2. Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
A. Materia weaknesses Identified?
B. Significant deficiency identified not considered being material weakness?
C. Noncompliance that is materia to the financial statements identified?

Federa Awards

1. Interna control over magor programs:

A. Materia weaknesses identified?

B. Reportable conditionsidentified not considered being material weakness?
2. Type of Auditors report issued on compliance for major programs?

3. Any Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Circular A-133, Section 510(a)?

4. Identification of Mgjor Program:

SCHEDULE E-2
Page 1 of 2

Unqualified

None
(Seeitem 2012-1)
None

(Seeitem 2012-2)
None

Qualified

(Seeitem 2012-2)

CEDA Number Name of Federa Program
14.218 Community Development Block Grant
16.710 COPS Grants
5. Doallar threshold used to distinguish between type A & B programs. $300,000
6. Auditee qualified as alow-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133, Section 5307 Y

SECTION 2—-FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Significant deficiency identified not considered being material weakness.

2012-1 Inadeguate design of monitoring controls

Criteria— Internal controls should provide for adequate monitoring of grant requests and reporting.

Condition — The grant administrator has been submitting reimbursement requests and reports without adequate
review by supervisory staff within the police department knowledgeabl e about grant financial integrity and

reporting requirements.
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SCHEDULE E-2
Page 2 of 2

CITY OF WEST COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGSAND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SECTION 2—-FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued)
Significant deficiency identified not considered being material weakness. (continued)

2012-1 Inadequate design of monitoring controls (continued)

Context — We compared the financial reports to the reimbursement requests and found they did not agree with
amounts that were eligible for reimbursement.

Effect — Financial reports were less that eligible amounts and resulted in inaccurate reporting.
Cause — Grant financial reporting was not properly reconciled to supporting financia records.

Recommendation — Procedures should be implemented to have the finance department review, approve and
monitor all police department grant requests and grant reporting.

SECTION 3—FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Material weaknessidentified.

2012-2 Inadeguate design of monitoring controls

Criteria— See Section 2 — Item 2012-1

Condition — See Section 2 — Item 2012-1

Questioned Costs — Costs were proper but monitoring controls were not adequate and reporting was inaccurate.
Context — See Section 2 — Item 2012-1

Effect — See Section 2 — Item 2012-1

Cause — See Section 2 — Item 2012-1

Recommendation — See Section 2 — Item 2012-1

Responsible Person Corrective Action Plan.

The City isin agreement with the above findings, and will implement the above recommendation.

There were no prior audit findings.
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REFH

Established 1957
Brittingham, Brovwn, Prince & Hancock, 1.1.C

Certified Public Accountants & Business Consultants

501 Sate Street - West Columbia, SC - 29171-5949 - Phone: (803) 739-3090 - Fax: (803) 791-0834

Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants- South Carolina Association of Certified Pub lic Accountants -

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of West Columbia, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of West Columbia (hereafter referred to as the City), as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated January 29, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.
(See item 2012-1). A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

James T. Brittingham, C.P.A. (1924-1995) - Kerry R. Brown, C.P.A - Kenneth E. Prince, C.P.A. - James T. Brittingham, Jr., C.P.A. - William H. Hancock, C.P.A. /

Auditing - Tax - Estate & Trust Planning - Governmental - Business Consulting Business Valuation - Litigation Support - Investment Advisory

www.BBPHCPA.com C PA
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2012-1 and 2012-2.

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Zmﬁ&mm Prince 4 opeoch

January 29, 2013
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Established 1957
Brittingham, Brovwn, Prince & Hancock, 1.1.C

Certified Public Accountants & Business Consultants

501 Sate Street - West Columbia, SC - 29171-5949 - Phone: (803) 739-3090 - Fax: (803) 791-0834

Members: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants: South Carolina Association of Certified Pub lic Accountants -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT
AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council
City of West Columbia, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited City of West Columbia, South Carolina’s (hereafter referred to as the City) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have direct and
material effect on each of the City’'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The City’'s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each
of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with those requirements.

As described in items 2012-1 and 2012-2 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the City,
did not comply with requirements regarding reporting that are applicable to its ARRA COPS Hiring Program Grant.
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the City, to comply with the requirements
applicable to that program.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City, complied, in all material
respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

James T. Brittingham, C.P.A. (1924-1995) - Kerry R. Brown, C.P.A - Kenneth E. Prince, C.P.A. - James T. Brittingham, Jr., C.P.A. - William H. Hancock, C.P.A.

Auditing - Tax - Estate & Trust Planning - Governmental - Business Consulting Business Valuation - Litigation Support - Investment Advisory

www.BBPHCPA.com C PA
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as items 2012-1 and 2012-2 to be a material weakness.

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, federal
awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Zmﬁlmﬁm Prines | Kgeoch

January 29, 2013
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	   Equipment          671,221        111,387                       782,608
	   Vehicles and Equipment        700,362          57,643         31,410                 726,595
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	   Series 2005  Issue  2.50%             577,467           8,619,860
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	Change in Accrued interest expense                   20,524

	TABLE 16.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 15.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 14.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 13.pdf
	A

	TABLE 12.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 11.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 10.pdf
	A

	TABLE 9.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 8.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 7.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 6.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 5.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 4.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 3.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 2 - 2.pdf
	Table 2 - Sheet 2 - 2012

	TABLE 2.pdf
	Table 2 - Sheet 1 - 2012

	TABLE 1.pdf
	TABLE1-2012

	TABLE 17.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 1.pdf
	TABLE1-2012

	TABLE 2.pdf
	Table 2 - Sheet 1 - 2012

	TABLE 2 - 2.pdf
	Table 2 - Sheet 2 - 2012

	TABLE 8.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 7.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 6.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 5.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 4.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 3.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 9.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 16.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 15.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 14.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 13.pdf
	A

	TABLE 12.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 11.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 10.pdf
	A

	TABLE 9.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 8.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 7.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 6.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 5.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 4.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 3.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 3.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 4.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 5.pdf
	2012

	TABLE 6.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 7.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 8.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 9.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 10.pdf
	A

	TABLE 11.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 12.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 13.pdf
	A

	TABLE 14.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 15.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 16.pdf
	Sheet1

	TABLE 17.pdf
	2012

	SEFA 2012.pdf
	2012

	Required Supplemental Infor 2012.pdf
	Required Supplementary Information
	Valuation    Value   Accrued Accrued Liability Funded        Covered        Percentage of


	TABLE 18.pdf
	A

	TABLE 19.pdf
	2012

	CAFR_transmittal_letter_FY2010-2012 - final.pdf
	January 29, 2013
	Factors Affecting Financial Condition
	Financial Information
	Other Information


	CAFR_management_discussion_analysis 2012.pdf
	Government-wide financial statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
	Financial Analysis of City of West Columbia Funds
	Financial Analysis of City of West Columbia Funds (Continued)
	Capital Assets and Debt Administration




